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PREPARED TO SERVE

In our 2002 Annual Report to Shareholders, we reported that The York Water Company
has 2 STRONG TRADITION OF PLANNING for the future, anticipating customer
needs and taking the action steps necessary to preserve and supply a sustainable source of high
quality water.

At that time, we were discussing York Water’s efforts to install a pumping station and a 15-mile
pipeline from the Susquehanna River to Lake Redman. This major water project was completed in
2004 and provided our customer base with a reserve water source to use during periods of high
demand and extended periods of drought.

This tradition of PREPARING TO SERVE the changing needs of CUSTOMERS in our
expanding distribution territory and supply system is a hallmark of The York Water Company.
Changes in technology and the demand for drinking water continuously require us to expand our
service capabilities. 2007 was no exception; and, we are in the midst of another major planning,
engineering and construction project to continue our tradition of supplying an adequate and
sustainable supply of water.

WE ARE PREPARING NOW to meet the present and future needs of our customers by
upgrading and improving our pumping and purification capabilities. During 2007, 2008 and 2009, we
will be investing $10 million in these facilities. Three major construction initiatives are already
underway including a new Residuals Processing Building, upgraded Sedimentation Facilities, and a
new Emergency Power Generation Facility.

Our customers of today and tomorrow can be assured that The York Water Company is Prepared to
Serve. We will continue to anticipate our communities’ needs and growth. Wherever and whenever,

“that good York water” is needed, it will be available in plentiful supply.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

We are pleased to report another remarkable year
in 2007. We posted another year of record financial
performance, and a productive year for growth and
expansion of service territory.

Jeffrey S. Osman
President and

Chief Executive Officer
{Retired)
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

We again achieved record operating revenues, operating income and net income. Earnings per
share decreased by 1.7% to $0.57 due to the dilution caused by our public offering of approximately
740,000 shares of common stock in December 2006.

Operating revenues grew by 9.7% to $31.4 million (surpassing the $30 million mark for the first
time). Operating income increased 9.8% to $14.2 million. Our earnings increased by 5.3% to $6.4
million.

Our operating revenue growth was offset by a reduction in our customers’ per capita consumption,

which we attribute to a drought watch declared in our service territory during the third quarter
of 2007.

GROWTH AND ExPANSION OF TERRITORY

The number of customers served grew by 2.3% during 2007 to 58,890. The percent of customer
growth in 2007 was lower than in the last several years due to weakness in the housing market.

Also in 2007, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission authorized an increase in the number of
municipalities in which we may serve from 42 to 46.

— Operating Revenues (miillions) —— — Net Income (millions)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
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ACQUISITIONS

On January 5, 2007, the Company closed the acquisition of the water system of the Borough of
Abbottstown, serving approximately 400 customers in the Borough through an interconnection with
our distribution system. This acquisition marks our first entry into the growing Adams County
region, one of the fastest growing regions in Pennsylvania.

On May 16, 2007, we announced that we had entered into an agreement to acquire the water system
of West Manheim Township. This acquisition is expected to result in the addition of approximately
2,100 customers, and is the largest in our history. The closing on this acquisition and the
interconnection to our distribution is anticipated to occur in the fourth quarter of 2008.

SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Our shareholders experienced a decrease in shareholder value during 2007. The market price of our
common stock decreased $2.38 per share to $15.50, or a 13.3% decrease. This decrease, together with
a $0.475 per share dividends paid during the year brought the total decrease in shareholder value
to 9.8%.

In line with our objective to maintain regular dividend increases, we raised the quarterly
dividend rate by 2.5% during the year. We have raised our dividend for eleven consecutive years
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DEeDpICATED AND EXPERIENCED EMPLOYEES

The success that we have achieved is due to the dedication and talent of our employees. li is their
energy and spirit that keeps this Company growing and thriving.

QuUTLOOK

Efforts to expand our franchise carry on. We continue to monitor our operating region for
opportunities to acquire new franchise territories, and thus new water customers. We also continue
to expand our service capabilities to adapt to changes in technology and demand for drinking water
quality. We will continue to anticipate our communities” growth. Wherever and whenever “That
good York water” is needed, it will be available in plentiful supply.

- Per Share Value
{Restated for 3 for 2 split)

In 2007, we lost our friend and associate, Bob Skold.
Bob had been a Director front November 1975 through September
1995, and a Director Emeritus from September 1995 until his

death. His counsel, guidance and friendship will be sorely missed.

Chloé Eichelberger retired from the Board of Directors
on March 31, 2007. Chioé served on the Board with distinction
since September 15, 1995. During those years, Chloé

demonstrated the highest standards of service to the Company.

Chloé has been elected as o Director Emeritus.

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
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{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Summary of Operations

For the Year 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Water operating revenue .............. $ 31433 $ 28,658 $ 26,805 $ 22,504 $ 20889
Operating expenses...................... 17,269 15,754 14,017 12,595 11,555
Operating income ........cococveennenns 14,164 12,904 12,788 9,909 9,334
Interest expense .......ccccecevvieinrienene 3916 3,727 3,423 2,132 2,523
Gain on sale of land ......ccccooennnnn. - - - 743 -
Other income (expenses), net ........ (142) 110 (14%) (168) 12
Income before income taxes.......... 10,106 9,287 9,216 8,352 6,823
INCome taxes. ..c.ccooveevieceernienennn. 3.692 3,196 3,385 3,051 2,375
Net income........ccooiiiiiiiiinnnns $ 6,414 % 6,091 $ 5,833 $ 5301 $ 4448

Per Share of Common Stock
Book value..........occoveiniininnns $ 5.97 $ 5.84 $ 4.85 $ 4.65 $ 4.05
Basic earnings per share............... 57 58 .56 53 A6
Dividends........ccooviiiiiiiiininiiins A75 454 424 394 367
Weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the year ....... 11,225,822 10,475,173 10,359,374 9,937 836 9,579,690

Utility Plant
Original cost, net of acquisitionadj... $ 222,354 $ 202,020 $ 181,756 $ 163,701 $ 138,314
Construction expenditures............ 19,754 21,682 15,553 25,981 11,527

Other
Total assets ........oceviciciniiinn $ 210,969 $ 196,064 $ 17229 % 156,066 $ 127,508
Long-term debt

including current maturities ....... 70,505 62,335 51,874 51,913 32,652

For Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations, please refer to page 11.

STVIDONVNI
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Market for Common Stock and Dividends

7))
i The common stock of The York Water Company is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market (Symbol “YORW*").
3
<ZC Quarterly price ranges and cash dividends per share for the last two years follow:
4
L
H 2007 2006
| Migh Low Dividend* High Low Dividend”*
|
1st Quarter $18.15 $16.12 $0.118 $18.67 $15.33 $0.112
2nd Quarter 18.55 16.60 0.118 2099 1592 0.112
3rd Quarter 18.40 16.70 0118 20.69 15.72 0.112
4th Quarter 17.30 15.45 0.121 20.35 17.50 0.118

*Cash dividends per share reflect dividends declared at each dividend date,
(Refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements for a description of the restriction on the declaration and payment of cash dividends.}
Prices are sales prices listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.

Shareholders of record (excluding individual participants in securities positions listings) as of December 31, 2007 numbered
approximately 1,443,

Dividend Policy

Dividends on the Company’s common stock are declared by the Board of Directors and are normally paid in January, April,
July and October. Dividends are paid based on shares outstanding as of the stated record date, which is ordinarily the last
day of the calendar month immediately preceding the dividend payment.

The dividend paid on the Company’s common stock on January 15, 2008 was the 548th consecutive dividend paid by the
Company. The Company has paid consecutive dividends for its entire history, since 1816. The policy of our Board of Directors
is currently to pay cash dividends on a quarterly basis. The dividend rate has been increased annually for eleven consecutive
years. Future cash dividends will be dependent upon the Company’s earnings, financial condition, capital demands and
other factors and will be determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Financial Reports and Investor Relations

Sharehelders may request, without charge, copies of the Company’s financial reports, including Annual Reports, and Forms
8-K, 10-K and 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Such requests, as well as other investor
relations inquiries, should be addressed to:

Kathleen M. Miller — Chief Financial Oificer The York Water Company (717) 845-3601
P.O. Box 15089, York, PA 17405-7089 (800) 750-5561
kathym@yorkwater.com

YORW on the Intermet

The Annual Report as well as reports filed with the SEC and other information about the Company can be found on the

Company’s website at: www.yorkwater.com

10
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains certain matters which are not historical facts, but which are forward-locking statements.

"o "o oo

Words such as “may,” “should,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan” and similar expressions are

intended to identify forward-looking statemnents. The Company intends these forward-looking statements to qualify for safe
harbor from liability established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, These forward-looking statements
include certain information relating to the Company’s business strategy; statements including, but not limited to:

*  expected profitability and results of operations;

=  goals, priorities and plans for, and cost of, growth and expansion;

s strategic initiatives;

*  availability of water supply;

*  water usage by customers; and

s ability to pay dividends on common stock and the rate of those dividends.

The forward-looking statements in this Annual Report reflect what the Company currently anticipates will happen. What
actually happens could differ materially from what it currently anticipates will happen. The Company does not intend to
make any public announcement when forward-looking statements in this Annual Report are no longer accurate, whether as
a result of new information, what actually happens in the future or for any other reason. Important matters that may affect
what will actually happen include, but are not limited to:

* changes in weather, including drought conditions;

* levels of rate relief granted;

*  the level of commercial and industrial business activity within the Company’s service territory;

*  construction of new housing within the Company’s service territory and increases in population;

+ changes in government policies or regulations;

¢ the ability to obtain permits for expansion projects;

*  material changes in demand from customers, including the impact of conservation efforts which may impact the demand

of customers for water;
* changes in economic and business conditions, including interest rates, which are less favorable than expected; and

¢ other matters set forth in ltem 1A, “Risk Factors,” of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

1
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OVERVIEW

The Company is the oldest investor-owned water utility in the United States and is duly organized under the laws of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Company has operated continuously since 1816. The business of the Company is
to impound, purify and distribute water. The Company operates within its franchised territory, which covers 39
municipalities within York County, Pennsylvania and seven municipalities within Adams County, Pennsylvania. The
Company is regulated by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commissien, or PPUC, in the areas of billing, payment procedures,
dispute processing, terminations, service territory and rate setting. The Company must obtain PPUC approval before
changing any of the aforementioned procedures. Water service is supplied through the Company’s own distribution system.
The Company obtains its water supply from the south branch and east branch of the Codorus Creek, which drains an area of
approximately 117 square miles. The Company has two reservoirs, Lake Williams and Lake Redman, which together hold up
to approximately 2.2 billion gallons of water. The Company has a 15-mile pipeline from the Susquehanna River to Lake
Redman which provides access to an additional supply of 12.0 million gallons of water per day. As of December 31, 2007,
the Company’s average daily availability was 35.0 million gallons, and daily consumption was approximately 19.1 million
gallons. The Company’s service territory had an estimated population of 171,000 as of December 31, 2007. Industry within
the Company’s service territory is diversified, manufacturing such items as fixtures and furniture, electrical machinery, food
products, paper, ordnance units, textile products, air conditioning systems, barbells and motorcycles.

The Company’s business does not require large amounts of working capital and is not dependent on any single customer
or a very few customers. In 2007, operating revenue was derived from the following sources and in the following percentages:
residential, 63%; commercial and industrial, 29%; and other, 8%, which is primarily from the provision for fire service.
Increases in revenues are generally dependent on the Company’s ability to obtain rate increases from regulatory authorities
in a timely manner and in adequate amounts and to increase volumes of water sold through increased consumption and

increases in the number of customers served.

During the five-year period ended December 31, 2007, the Company has maintained an increasing growth in number of
customers and distribution facilities as demonstrated by the following chart:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Average daily consumption (gallons per day) 19,058,000 18,769,000 18,657,000 18,116,000 17,498,000

Miles of mains at year-end 845 817 786 752 730
Additional distribution mains
installed /acquired (ft.) 147,803 159,330 212,702 114,658 44,958
Number of customers at year-end 58,890 57.578 55,731 53,134 51,916
Population served at year-end 171,000 166,000 161,000 158,000 156,000
12
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{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts}

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Company management uses financial measures including operating revenues, net income, earnings per share and return on
equity to evaluate its financial performance. Additional statistical measures including number of customers, customer complaint
rate, annual customer rates, and the efficiency ratio are used to evaluate performance quality. These measures are calculated on
a regular basis and compared with historical information, budget, and the other publicly-traded water companies.

The Company's 2007 performance was strong under most of the above measures, however eamnings per share were not as
strong as forecasted. At the end of 2006, we issued approximately 740,000 additional shares of common stock. Despite an increase
in net income in 2007 over 2006 of 5.3%, earnings per share fell by 1.7% due to dilution. Increased expenses prevented net income
from reaching the level required to produce earnings per share equal to or greater than 2006.

The efficiency ratio, which is calculated as net income divided by revenues, is used by management to evaluate its ability
to keep expenses in line, Over the five previous years, our ratio averaged 21.5%. In 2007, the ratio fell slightly to 20.4% due to
increased expenses which had not yet been included in rates charged to customers. The increased expenses will be included in
a future rate filing which should help bring our efficiency ratio back to historical levels. Management continues to look for ways
to decrease expenses and increase efficiency.

REesuLTs oF OPERATIONS

2007 COMPARED WITH 2006

Net income for 2007 was $6,414, an increase of $323, or 5.3%, from net income of $6,091 for 2006. On a per share basis,
earnings were down by $0.01 for the year reflecting the increase in net income and a 7.2% increase in the average number of
common shares outstanding. The increase in the number of shares outstanding is primarily a result of the 739,750 additional
shares issued by the Company in a public offering in December 2006. The primary contributing factors to the increase in net
income were higher water operating revenues partially offset by increased operating expenses.

Water operating revenues for the year increased $2,775, or 9.7%, from $28,658 for 2006 to $31,433 for 2007. The primary
reason for the increase in revenues was a 9.2% rate increase effective September 15, 2006. The average number of customers
served in 2007 increased as compared to 2006 by 1,793 customers, from 56,697 to 58,490 customers, due to growth in the
Company's service territory and the Abbottstown Borough water system acquisition on January 5, 2007. Despite this increase
in customers, the total per capita volume of water sold in 2007 decreased compared te 2006 by approximately 1.2% due to
reduced consumption in our service territory. The Company’s service territory was on drought watch, which calls for a
voluntary reduction in water use of 3%, during the months of August and October through December 2007. This had a small
negative impact on revenues. The Company expects revenues to continue to increase as a result of increases to the customer
base within its current service area, although at a lower rate due to the slump in the housing market, and through strategic
acquisitions. The Company also seeks rate relief on a timely basis. Drought warnings or restrictions as well as regulatory
actions could impact results.

Operating expenses for the year increased $1,515, ar 9.6%, from $15,754 for 2006 to $17,269 for 2007. Higher depreciation expense
of approximately $705 due to increased plant investment, higher salaries of approximately $647 due to increased rates and
additional employees and increased pension expense of approximately $248 were the principal reasons for the increase. Higher
electric costs, increased maintenance at the filter plant and higher chemical expense aggregating approximately $260 also added
to the increase. The increase was partially offset by lower internal control compliance costs. reduced realty and capital stock taxes

13
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

and increased capitalized overhead aggregating approximately $468. Depreciation expenses are expected to continue to rise due
to the level of plant investment in 2007. Pension expense is expected to level off in 2008. Other operating expenses should continue
to increase at a moderate level as costs to serve additional customers and to extend our distribution system continue to rise.

Interest expense on long-term debt increased $545, or 15.4%, from $3,550 for 2006 to $4,095 for 2007, due primarily to an
increase in the amount of long-term debt outstanding. The Company issued tax-exempt debt through the York County
Industrial Development Authority, or YCIDA, in the amount of $10,500 in October 2006. The proceeds of the bond issuance
were used to pay down a portion of the Company’s short-term borrowings. Increased borrowings under the Company’s
committed line of credit to fund operations and construction added to the increase.

Interest expense on short-term debt for 2007 was $566 lower than 2006 due to a decrease in short-term borrowings used
to fund operations and construction expenditures. The average short-term debt outstanding in 2007 and 2006 was $793 and
$10,453, respectively.

Allowance for funds used during construction decreased $210, from $438 for 2006 to $228 for 2007, due to a decrease in
construction expenditures that were eligible for interest. Construction in 2006 included expenditures for large projects such
as the main extension to Abbottstown and the enterprise software system. The 2008 allowance is expected to be higher than
the 2007 level due to a large water treatment project and a main extension to West Manheim Township.

Other expenses, net increased by $252 in 2007 as compared to 2006 primarily due to reduced interest income on water
district notes receivable because of a reduction in the note balance. Increased charitable contributions, many eligible for tax
credits, added to the increase.

Federal and state income taxes increased by $496, or 15.5%, primarily due to higher taxable income. The Company’s
effective tax rate was 36.5% in 2007 and 34.4% in 2006.

2006 COMPARED WITH 2005

Net income for 2006 was $6,091, an increase of $258, or 4.4%, compared to net income of $5,833 for 2005. Increased water
revenues were the primary contributing factor. An increased allowance for funds used during construction, decreased
supplemnental retirement expenses and a lower effective tax rate also added to the increase. Higher operating expenses and

higher short-term interest expenses partially offset the increase.

Water operating revenues for the year increased $1,853, or 6.9%, from $26,805 for 2005 to $28,658 for 2006. A 9.2% rate
increase effective September 15, 2006 accounted for approximately $719, or 38.8%, of the increase in water operating revenues
for 2006. The average number of customers served in 2006 increased as compared to 2005 by 2,287, from 54,410 to 56,697
customers, due to growth in the Company’s service territory and the Spring Grove and Mountain View acquisitions in July
and November 2005, respectively. Despite this increase in customers, the total per capita volume of water sold in 2006

decreased compared to 2005 due to reduced consumption in the service territory.
Operating expenses for the year increased $1,737, or 12.4%, from $14,017 for 2005 to $15,754 for 2006. Higher salaries due

to wage increases and additional employees of approximately $458, increased software training, conversion and support
expenses of approximately $184, higher internal control compliance expenses of approximately $171, higher depreciation

14
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Iln thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

expense of $155 due to increased plant investment, increased distribution system maintenance of approximately $132 and higher
transportation expenses due to additional vehicles and increased gas prices of approximately $116 were the principal reasons for
the increase. Higher pension expense, payroll taxes, electric costs, bad debt expense, shareholder expenses and chemical costs
apgregaling approximately $512 also contributed to the increase. The increase was partially offset by lower rate case expense,
reduced hydrant expenses due to inventorying additional parts and higher capitalization of indirect costs aggregating $173.

interest expense on long-term debt increased $80, or 2.3%, from $3,470 for 2005 to $3,550 for 2006, due primarily to an
increase in amounts outstanding. The Company issued tax-exempt debt through the YCIDA in the amount of $10,500 in
October 2006. The proceeds of the bond issue were used to pay down a portion of the Company’s short-term borrowings. The
increase was partially offset by the remarketing of the Company’s 6.0% Industrial Development Autherity Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1995, and the interest rate being redetermined to 3.75% on June 1, 2005.

Interest expense on short-term debt increased $481, from $134 for 2005 to $615 for 2006 due to an increase in short-term
borrowings used to fund operations and construction expenditures. The average short-term debt outstanding in 2006 and 2005
was $10,453 and $2,700, respectively.

Allowance for funds used during construction increased $257 from $181 for 2005 to $438 for 2006 due to an increase in
construction expenditures that were eligible for interest, including expenditures for the main extension to Abbottstown and the

enterprise software system.

Other income, net increased by $259 in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily due to reduced supplemental retirement expenses
of approximately $225 due to an increase in the discount rate. Lower contributions and increased interest income on water
district notes receivable aggregating approximately $81 also added to the increase. Higher non-operating property maintenance
expenses of approximately $28 partially offset the increase.

Federal and state income taxes decreased by $187, or 5.5%. The effective tax rate declined from 36.7% in 2005 to 34.4% in 2006
due to the qualified domestic production deduction.

RATE DEVELOPMENTS

From time to time the Company files applications for rate increases with the PPUC and is granted rate relief as a result of
such requests. The most recent rate request was filed by the Company on April 27, 2006, and sought an increase of $4,500,
which would have represented a 16.0% increase in rates. Effective September 15, 2006, the PPUC authorized an increase in
rates designed to produce approximately $2,600 in additional annual revenues, which represented an increase of 9.2% in the
Company’s rates at such time. The Company anticipates that it will file a rate increase request in 2008.

ACQUISITIONS

On May 16, 2007, the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement to acquire the water system of West
Manheim Township in York County, Pennsylvania. This acquisition is expected to result in the addition of 2,100 customers
and will cost approximately $2,075. The agreement was approved by the PPUC on December 20, 2007, and now awaits
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) approval on the construction permits. Upon approval by DEF,
the Company will construct a main from its current distribution system to interconnect with West Manheim’s distribution
system. The interconnection and closing on this acquisition are expected to occur in the fourth quarter of 2008.

15

STVIONVNI]




FINANCIALS

THE YORK WATER COMPANY 2007 Annual Report

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

On January 5, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of the water system of Abbottstown Borough which served
approximately 400 customers in Adams County, Pennsylvarua. The purchase price of approximately $900 was less than the
depreciated original cost of these assets. The Company has recorded a negative acquisition adjustment of approximately $131 and
is amortizing this credit over the remaining life of the acquired assets. The purchase was funded through internally-generated
funds and short-term borrowings. The Company began serving the customers of Abbottstown Borough in January 2007.

See Note 2 to the financial statements for additional acquisitions.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2007, current liabilities exceeded current assets by $14,548. At December 31, 2006, current assets
exceeded current liabilities by $775. The change was primarily due to an increase in current maturities of long-term debt,
due to the reclassification of our $12,000 variable rate PEDFA Series B Bonds from long-term to short-term debt described
below, and an increase in short-term borrowings. As of February 2008, the Company maintains two lines of credit
aggregating $28,000. Loans granted under these lines of credit bear interest at LIBOR plus 0.70% to 0.75%. Both lines of
credit are unsecured. One line, amounting to $11,000 is payable upon demand, whereas the other is a committed line with
a revolving 2-year maturity. The Company had $11,210 outstanding borrowings under its lines of credit as of December 31,
2007, and no line of credit borrowings as of December 31, 2006, The borrowings were incurred primarily for acquisitions
and construction expenditures. $8,210 of the outstanding borrowings were under the committed line of credit and
classified as long term, and $3,000 of the borrowings were under the short-term line. The weighted average interest rate on
line of credit borrowings at December 31, 2007 was 5.62%. The Company is not required to maintain compensating
balances on its lines of credit.

The holders of our $12,000 variable rate PEDFA Series B Bonds may tender their bonds at any time. When the bonds
are tendered, they are subject to an annual remarketing agreement, pursuant to which a remarketing agent attempts to
remarket the tendered bonds pursuant to the terms of the Indenture. The Company also has a Standby Bond Purchase
Agreement (also known as a liquidity facility) whereby bonds which cannot be remarketed are purchased by a financial
institution (PNC Bank). If PNC Bank is unable to remarket or sell the bonds within 6 months, the Company must begin to
buy back the bonds in monthly installments over a five-year period. The effect of this arrangement has historically allowed
the Company to classify these bonds as long-term debt.

In January 2008, the credit rating of the insurer of the bonds was downgraded, and as a result, all of the bonds were
tendered. As a result of these events, we have classified the $12,000 variable rate debt as short term on the balance sheet.
The remarketing agent is currently attempting to remarket the bonds, but these efforts may not be successful. Also, the
terms of the standby agreement permit PNC Bank to terminate the agreement after an insurer credit downgrade has
occutred. If the remarketing agent is unable to remarket the bonds, it is likely that PNC Bank will terminate the standby
agreement and the Company will be required to refund and refinance all of the bonds. The Company is currently looking
into both fixed and variable financing options that will best satisfy both short-term and long-term objectives. The Company
also has sufficient line of credit capacity to be able to buy the bonds back temporarily until a more permanent refinancing
can be obtained.
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{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

During 2007, the Company incurred $19,754 of construction expenditures for routine items as well as a new standpipe,
main replacements and relinings, software development and a water treatment expansion project. In addition to the
aforementioned construction expenditures, the Company incurred approximately $900 for the purchase of the water
system of Abbottstown Borough. The Company was able to fund operating activities, acquisitions and construction
expenditures using internally-generated funds, borrowings against the Company’s lines of credit, proceeds from the
issuance of common stock under its dividend reinvestment plan (stock issued in lieu of cash dividends), or DRIF, and
employee stock purchase plan, or ESPP, customer advances and the distribution surcharge allowed by the PPUC. The
distribution surcharge allows the Company to add a charge to customers’ bills for qualified replacement costs of certain
infrastructure without submitting a rate filing. We anticipate construction expenditures for 2008 and 2009 of approximately
$24,640 and $15,350, respectively. In addition to routine transmission and distribution projects, a portion of the anticipated
2008 and 2009 expenditures will be for additional standpipes, booster stations, upgrades to water treatment facilities,
distribution center renovations, the West Manheim acquisition and main extension and various replacements of aging
infrastructure. Internally-generated funds, borrowings against the Company’s lines of credit, proceeds from the issuance
of common stock under its DRIP and ESPT, customer advances, the distribution surcharge and potential long-term debt
and common stock issues will be used to satisfy the need for additional cash.

DiviDENDS

During 2007, the Company’s dividend payout ratios relative to net income and cash provided by operating activities were
83.1% and 52.6%, respectively. During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Board of Directors increased the dividend by 2.5%
from 11.8 cents per share to 12.1 cents per share per quarter. This was the eleventh consecutive annual dividend increase
and the 192nd consecutive year of paying dividends. While the Company expects to maintain this dividend amount in
2008, future dividends will be dependent upon the Company’s earnings, financial condition, capital demands and other
factors and will be determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

CoMMON STOCKHOLDERS  EQUITY

Common stockholders’ equity as a percent of the total capitalization, defined as total common stockholders” equity
plus long-term debt (including current maturities), was 48.8% as of December 31, 2007, compared with 51.2% as of
December 31, 2006. It is the Company’s intent to maintain a ratio near fifty percent.

INFLATION

The Company, like all other businesses, is affected by inflation, most notably by the continually increasing costs
incurred to maintain and expand its service capacity. The cumulative effect of inflation results in significantly higher
facility replacement costs which must be recovered from future cash flows. The ability of the Company to recover this
increased investment in facilities is dependent upon future revenue increases, which are subject to approval by the PFUC.
The Company can provide no assurances that its rate increases will be approved by the PPUC; and, if approved, the
Company cannot guarantee that these rate increases will be granted in a timely or sufficient manner to cover the

investments and expenses for which the rate increase was sought.
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ConNTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations by period as of December 31, 2007;

Payments Due by Period

Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
Long-term debt obligations {a) § 70505 § 12040 $ 10951 $ 4341 $ 41 % 42 $ 43,090
Interest on long-term debt (b) 47,588 3,480 3,419 3,288 3,221 3,220 30,960
Short-term borrowings {(c) 3,000 3,000 - - - - -
Purchase obligations (d} 4,869 4,869 - - - - -
Defined benefit obligations (e} 800 800 - - - - -
Deferred employee benefits {f) 4,090 202 210 181 215 218 3,064
Total $130,852 $ 24391 $ 14580 $ 7810 $ 3477 % 3480 $ 77,114
{a) Represents debt maturities including current maturities. Included in the table is a payment of $12,000 in 2008 on the variable rate

bonds which were tendered in January 2008, The Company may be required to refund the bonds if they cannot be remarketed,
and if the standby bond purchase agreement is cancelled.

(b) Excludes interest on the $12,000 variable rate debt and the associated interest rate swap payments as these payments cannot be
reasonably estimated. Also excludes interest on the committed line of credit due to the variability of both the cutstanding amount
and the interest rate.

{c) Represents cbligations under the Company’s short-term line of credit.
(d) Represents purchase obligations under contracts relating to the West Manheim Township acquisition and the filter plant upgrade.

(e} Represents contributions expected to be made to qualified defined benefit plans. The amount of required contributions in 2009
and thereafter is not currently determinable.

1] Represents the obligations under the Company's Supplemental Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plans for executives.

In addition to these obligaticns, the Company makes refunds on Customers” Advances for Construction over a specific period
of time based on operating revenues related to developer-installed water mains or as new customers are connected to and
take service from such mains. The refund amounts are not included in the above table because the timing cannot be accurately
estimated. Portions of these refund amounts are payable annuaily through 2018 and amounts not paid by the contract
expiration dates become non-refundable and are transferred to Contributions in Aid of Construction.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The methods, estimates and judgments we use in applying our accounting policies have a significant impact on the results
we report in our financial statements. Our accounting policies require us to make subjective judgments because of the need
to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain. Our most critical accounting estimates include: regulatory assets
and liabilities, revenue recognition and accounting for our pension plans.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

SFAS No. 71 defines generally accepted accounting principles for companies whose rates are established by or are subject to
approval by an independent third-party regulator. In accordance with SFAS No. 71, the Company defers costs and credits on
its balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that these costs and credits will be recognized in the
rate-making process in a period different from when the costs and credits were incurred. These deferred amounts are then
recognized in the income statement in the period in which they are reflected in customer rates. If the Company later finds that
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these assets and liabilities cannot be included in rate-making, they are adjusted appropriately. See Note 1 for additional details
regarding regulatory assets and liabilities.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues include amounts billed to metered customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on both actual
and estimated usage from the latest meter reading to the end of the accounting period. Estimates are based on average daily
usage for those particular customers. The unbilled revenue amount is recorded as a current asset on the balance sheet.
Actual results could differ from these estimates and would result in operating revenues being adjusted in the period in which
the actual usage is known. Based on historical experience, the Company believes its estimate of unbilled revenues
is reasonable.

Pension Accounting

Accounting for defined benefit pension plans requires estimates of future compensation increases, mortality, the discount
rate, and expected return on plan assets as well as other variables. The Company selected its December 31, 2007 and 2006
discount rates based on the Citigroup Pension Liability Index. This index uses the Citigroup spot rates for durations out to
30 years and matches them to expected disbursements from the plan over the long term. The Company believes this index
most appropriately matches its pension obligations. The present values of the Company’s future pension obligations were
determined using a discount rate of 6.5% at December 31, 2007 and 5.9% at December 31, 2006.

Choosing a lower discount rate normaily increases the amount of pension expense and the corresponding liability. In the case
of the Company, a 25 basis point reduction in the discount rate would increase its liability by $602, but would not have an
impact on its pension expense. The PPUC, in a previous rate settlement, agreed to grant recovery of the Company’s
contribution to the pension plans in customer rates. As a result, under SFAS No. 71, expense in excess of the Company’s
pension plan contribution is deferred as a regulatory asset and will be expensed as contributions are made to the plans and
the contributions are recovered in customer rates. Therefore, changes in the discount rate affect regulatory assets rather than

pension expense.

The Company’s estimate of the expected return on plan assets was primarily based on the historic returns and projected
future returns of the asset classes represented in its plans. Approximately 60% of pension assets are equity securities and 40%
are debt securities. The Company used 7% as its estimate of expected return on assets in both 2007 and 2006. If the Company
were to reduce the expected return by 25 basis points to 6.75%, its liability would increase by $39, but its expense would again
remain unchanged because the expense is equal to the Company’s contribution to the plans. The additional expense would
instead be recorded as an increase to regulatory assets.

Other critical accounting estimates are discussed in the Significant Accounting Policies Note to the Financial Statements.

QOrr-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

The Company does not use off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements or obligations that may have a material current or
future effect on financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, capital resources or significant
components of revenues or expenses. The Company does not use securitization of receivables or unconsolidated entities. The
Company does not engage in trading or risk management activities, with the exception of the interest rate swap agreement
discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative trading purposes,
has no lease obligations, and does not have material transactions involving related parties.

IMPACT OF RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1 to the financial statements, “Significant Accounting Palicies” for the effeci of new accounting pronouncements.
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: B.LP“F. on:Internal Confrol Over Financial Reporting

Management of The York Water Company (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management evaluated the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Frametoork (COS0O). As a result of this assessment and based on the criteria in the
COS0 framework, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting was effective.
The Company’s independent auditors, Beard Miller Company LLP, have audited the Company's internal control over

financial reporting. Their opinions on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and on the Company’s financial
statements appear on the following pages of this annual report.

A —

Jeffrey R. Hines
President, Chief Executive Officer

Kiotton V(] 000

Kathleen M. Miller
Chief Financial Officer

March 10, 2008
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To THE BOARD OF [DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
OF THE YORK WATER COMPANY

We have audited The York Water Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in Imfernal Control—integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission {COSO). The York Water Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included
in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. Qur audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, The York Water Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Infernal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the balance sheets and the related statements of income, common stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash
flows of The York Water Company, and our report dated March 10, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion.

&MW% LLP

Beard Miller Company LLP
York, Pennsylvania
March 10, 2008
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To THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
OF THE YORK WATER COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The York Water Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related statements of income, common stockholders” equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007. The York Water Company’s management is responsible for these financial
statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The
York Water Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As discussed in Note 6 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for defined benefit
pension plans in 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
The York Water Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS0), and our report dated March 10, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion.

Boand? Mitlen Coparnsy, 207

Beard Miller Company LLP
York, Pennsylvania
March 10, 2008
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As of December 31 T
ASSETS 2007 2006 Z
>
Utility Plant, at original cost $ 223,538 $ 203,101 2z
Plant acquisition adjustments (1,184) (1,081) Q
Accumulated depreciation ...t (31,308) (28,220) >
Net utility plant 191,046 173,800 o
Other Physical Property:
Less accumulated depreciation of $150 in 2007 and $138 in 2006 ... 574 569
Current Assets:
Receivables, less reserves of $193 in 2007 and $173in 2006 ..........coooiiiiiiiininiiiciinneens 2,954 2,304
Unbilled revenues 2,216 2,536
Recoverable INCOME tAXES .......viiiiiiiiierrriiiirvrrareesrrrrrras s resemeanaeermrsnaeree s reecnnnnnnssin 252 520
Materials and supplies inventories, at cost 802 820
Prepaid expenses ... 456 400
Deferred income taxes 132 118
Total current assets 6,812 6,698
Other Long-Term Assets:
Deferred debt eXpPense . ... ..o e s 1,170 1,263
NOES 1eCEIVADIE ..coiviiii i e ey e e e e e e et it e et b 610 1,941
Deferred regulatory assets .......ocoovieiiiiiiniiinie 7,709 8,993
(1 1L OO U U OO OO U PPN 3,048 2,800
Total long-term assets 12,537 14,997
Total Assets % 210,969 $ 196,064
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Common Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock, no par value, authorized 46,500,000 shares, issued and
outstanding 11,264,923 shares in 2007 and 11,201,119 shares in 2006 ...............cccoc. % 56,566 $ 55,558
Retained armings ........ccciriirieiiiiiiiiieir it e 10,986 9,904
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (280} (101}
Total common stockholders’ equity ..., 67,272 65,361
Preferred stock, authorized 500,000 shares, no shares issued ....................conn - -
Long-term debt, excluding current portion ... 58,465 61,095
Commitments
Current Liabilities:
Short-term DOITOWINES ...coiviviiiii ittt 3,000 -
Current portion of long-term debt ... 12,040 1,240
Accounts payable ..o 3,164 1,627
Dividends payable ............ 1,126 1,075
Accrued taxes ........ooeeeveen. 24 70
Accrued interest................ 910 916
Other accrued expenses 1,096 995
Total current liabilities 21,360 5,923
Deferred Credits:
Customers’ advances fOr CONSITUCHON ......covvvivvimnrvreneien et ren e 21,821 25,221
Contributions in aid of construction 19,736 15,952
IS ey gueis BB Pam 6] Lo b o o S P 16,964 15,529
Deferred employee bencfits ..o 4,042 5,891
Other deferred Credits ......veeivi et e e e et s as s st st s e e bnerassaarees 1,309 1,092
Total deferred credits 63,872 63,685
Total Stockholders’ Equity and Liabilities $ 210,969 $ 196,064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Statements of In.come

{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Water Operating Revenues:
RESIAENEIAL ...t sttt e ceene st ee s s ssase e rnaesias 5 19,722 $ 17,972 $ 16,737
Commercial and INAUSTIAl ...t aeee e eeens 9,290 8,497 8,009
L0 15 1T OO OO OO DS O OO U UU ROV YUV O DT UOUPOTION 2,421 2,189 2,059
31,433 28,658 26,805
Operating Expenses:
Operation and Mainienance. ... e " 6,593 5,976 5,298
Administrative and general ... 6,506 6,174 5,432
Depreciation and amortization............cooiciiiecnnncain 3,227 2,522 2,364
Taxes other than INCOME tAXES ... ceeesr s sreessesasns 943 1,082 923
17,269 15,754 14,017
OPErating iNCOME .....ovmeveviiretctee ettt rees 14,164 12,904 12,788
Other Income {Expenses):
Interest on long-term debt....ii e (4,095) (3.550) (3.470)
Interest on short-term debt ... (49 (615) (134)
Allowance for funds used during construction 228 438 181
Other income (EXPenSes), Net.............cc..cvrmeivionmmescse s {142) 110 (149)
{4,058) (3,617) (3,572)
Income before INCOME taAXES ..........eiceveeeeeeete e s resie s s 10,106 9,287 9,216
Federal and state iINCOME taXES....icui e et s e siaies 3,692 3,196 3,383
INEE TILCOIMIE vvvvesveeeeieeete et eests s beessesse s e eeetesresnnssnseseessesnnesssaanssnssssensessnran % 6,414 $ 6,091 $ 5,833
Basic Earnings Per Common Share $ 0.57 $ 0.58 8 0.56
Cash Dividends Declared Per Commeon Share % 0.475 % 0.454 % 0.424

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Statenﬁen;t

quity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

. : : ’ :
s of CPmmon Stockholders’ E and Co:mprt;ehensive Inconz1e

Accumulated i
Other Z
Common Retained Comprehensive >
Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Total (Zj
Balance, December 31, 2004 ...................... 41,014 7,192 (169) $ 48,037 E
NEE INCOTIIE ..o e b asssnes - 5,833 - 5,833 @
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap,
net of $101 INCOME $aX ovrerivccrrerisinnrsiisasnses - - (148) (148)
Reclassification adjustment for amounts
recognized in income, net of $57
INCOME FAX ..ot - - 84 84
Comprehensive INCOME......nniiine 5,769
Dividends ($.424 per share}.....c...cc.covniiennininnens - (4,392) - (4,392}
Issuance of common stock under
dividend reinvestment and
employee stock purchase plans........................ 1,001 - - 1,001
Balance, December 31, 2005 ...................... 42,015 8,633 (233) 50,415
INEE ITICOTITR ceere et csne et e sneae e s eseeeans - 6,091 - 6,091
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap,
net of $82 INCOME taX .....corvevrererrereerrrivrererecanca - - 120 120
Reclassification adjustment for amounts
recognized in income, net of $8 income tax - - 12 12
Comprehensive IRCOMe.....uereeienseniniiniaiiiseans 6,223
Dividends ($.454 per share}.... - (4,820) - (4,820)
Issuance of 739,750 shares common stock ........... 12,482 - - 12,482
Issuance of common stock under
dividend reinvestment and
employee stock purchase plans.........coin 1,061 - - 1,061
Balance, December 31, 2006 ..................... 55,558 9,904 (101) 65,361
INEE INCOMIE ceeeereeieereereeeee e seeesssesse e asssas e annerens - 6,414 - 6,414
Other comprehensive income (loss}:
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap,
net of $125 income tax ..., - - (183} (183)
Reclassification adjustment for amounts
recognized in income, net of $3 income tax... - - 4 4
Comprehensive INCOME. ..., 6,235
Dividends ($.475 per share)......ocoeevcoemrrrccrennens - (5,332) - (5,332)
Issuance of common stock under
dividend reinvestment and
employee stock purchase plans........c.c..c.cc..... 1,008 - - 1,008
Balance, December 31, 2007 ..................... 56,566 10,986 (280} 5 67,272

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
NEE INCOMIE v s b st s rsaren
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ... e
Increase in deferred INCOME tAXES ..o e
Other ...
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and recoverable
INCOITIE tAXES . c.corvrrrrmreirrsrrrrnsss e s s
{Increase) decrease in materials and supplies and prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued expenses, regulatory
and other liabilities, and deferred employee benefits and credits
Increase {decrease) in accrued interest and taxes ..o
(Increase) decrease in regulatory and other assets.......coooecccnninns
Net cash provided by operating activities.......cccouvnvcee.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Utility plant additions, including debt portion of allowance for
funds used during construction of $127 in 2007, $245 in 2006 and

B107 I 2005 ...ttt emra e se e ettt sne st e ss b s
Acquisitions of Water SYSIEIMS ... et
Decrease in notes receivable........ oot

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Customers’ advances for construction and contributions
in aid Of CONSIUCHON ..ot eentesees e eieeaen
Repayments of customer adVances ........ooecomenneecessnecssasssnesenss
Proceeds (issuance costs) of long-term debt.............cooriiiinns
Repayments of long-term debt ...
Borrowings (repayments) under short-term line-of-credit agreements..
Changes in cash overdraft PoOSItion ...
Issuance of coMMON SLOCK......cvrrci s
Dividends paid......ooummsnnsn.
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents ...,
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year......cccconcernniiccnennn
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .............cccce....

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of amounts capitalized ...,
Income taxes........cocoooviioececc s

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
6,414 $ 6,091 $ 5,833
3,227 2,522 2,364
1,143 1,496 688
(71) (115) (85)
(216) (1,729} {261)
(38) (29) 567
(1,654) 1,504 1,149
(52) 111 (477)
1,287 (2,735) (1,327)
10,040 7,116 8,451
{18,154) (20,678) (15,562)
(896) - (1,994)
858 255 41
(18,192) {20,423) (17,515)
2,447 4,065 5,328
(1,469) (1,465) (1,141)
8,210 9,920 (35)
{40) (39) (39)
3,000 (7,292) 7,292
277 (753) 805
1,008 13,543 1,001
(5,281) (4,672) (4,311)
8,152 13,307 8,900
- - (164)

- - 164

Z $ _ 5 _
3,970 $ 3,815 % 3,473
2,324 2,174 3,027

Accounts payable includes $2,311 in 2007, $900 in 2006 and $1,223 in 2005 for the construction of utility plant,
Accounts payable and other deferred credits includes $173 in 2007, $238 in 2006 and $303 in 2005 for the acquisition of water systems,

The change in notes receivable includes $473 in 2007 and ($4) in 2005 offset by like amounts of customer advances.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these staterments.
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{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) |

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The business of The York Water Company is to impound, purify and distribute water. The Company operates within its franchised
territory located in York and Adams Counties, Pennsylvania, and is subject to regulation by the PPUC.

STVIDNVNIH{

The following summarizes the significant accounting policies employed by The York Water Company.

Utility Plant and Depreciation

The cost of additions includes contracted cost, direct labor and fringe benefits, materials, overhead and, for certain utility plant,
allowance for funds used during construction. Water systems acquired are recorded at estimated original cost of utility plant when
first devoted to utility service and the applicable depreciation is recorded to accumulated depreciation. The difference between !
the estimated original cost less applicable accumulated depreciation, and the purchase price is recorded as an acquisition !
adjustment within utility plant. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, utility plant includes a credit acquisition adjustment of $1,184 and
$1,081, respectively. The acquisition of Abbottstown Borough water assets yielded a negative acquisition adjustment of $131. The
net acquisition adjustment is being amortized over the remaining life of the respective assets. Amortization amounted to $28 in
2007, $31 in 2006 and $34 in 2005.

Upen normal retirement of depreciable property, the estimated or actual cost of the asset is credited to the utility plant account,
and such amounts, together with the cost of removal less salvage value, are charged to the reserve for depreciation. To the extent
the Company recovers cost of removal or other retirement costs through rates after the retirement costs are incurred, a regulatory
asset is reported. Gains or losses from abnormal retirements are reflected in income currently.

The Company charges to maintenance expense the cost of repairs and replacements and renewals of minor items of property.
Maintenance of transportation equipment is charged to clearing accounts and apportioned therefrom in a manner similar to
depreciation. The cost of replacements, renewals and betterments of units of property is capitalized to the utility plant accounts.

The straight-line remaining life method is used to compute depreciation on utility plant cost, exclusive of land and land rights.
Annual provisions for depreciation of transportation and mechanical equipment included in utility plant are computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated service lives. Such provisions are charged to clearing accounts and apportioned therefrom
to operating expenses and other accounts in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the PPUC. The
following remaining lives are used for financial reporting purposes:

. December 31, Approximate range
Utility Plant Asset Category 2007 2006 of remaining lives
Mains and accessories. ......coooivieiinii i $ 111,500 $ 102,743 13-85 yrs
Services, meters and hydrants............ocooeeniiiiinnnnn 46,556 42,447 22-54 yrs
Operations structures, reservoirs and water tanks......... 35,966 33,677 11-67 yrs
Pumping and purification equipment..........c...ccceiens 7,951 7,428 8-33 yrs
Office, transportation and operating equipment ........... 8,676 7,458 1-22 yrs
Land and other non-depreciable assets..........cc.cccecceee. 2,771 2690 -
Utility plant in service......coooveiniiiiiiiinne e 213,420 196,443
Construction work in progress..........cccvenvcecineeienae 10,118 6,658 -
Total Utility Plant.........ccooevvniiiimirsini e, $ 223,538 $ 203,101

The effective rate of depreciation was 1.98% in 2007, 1.72% in 2006, and 1.82% in 2005 on average utility plant, net of
customers’ advances and contributions. Larger depreciation provisions are deducted for tax purposes.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at outstanding balances, less a reserve for doubtful accounts. The reserve for doubtful accounts is
established through provisions charged against income. Accounts deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the reserve and
subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the reserve. The reserve for doubtful accounts is maintained at a level considered
adequate to provide for losses that can be reasonably anticipated. Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the
reserve is based on past experience, agings of the receivables, adverse situations that may affect a customer’s ability to pay, current
economic conditions, and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective. Unpaid balances remaining after the
stated payment terms are considered past due,

Revenues

Revenues include amounts billed to customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on actual and estimated usage from
the latest meter reading to the end of the accounting period.

Deferred Debt Expense
Deferred debt expense is amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related debt.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are recorded at cost and represent amounts due from various municipalities for construction of water mains into
their particular municipality. Management, considering current information and events regarding the borrowers” ability to repay
their ebligations, considers a note to be impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the note agreement. When a note is considered to be impaired, the carrying value of the note

is written down. The amount of the impairment is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted
at the note’s effective interest rate.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

The Company is subject to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” SFAS No. 71 provides for the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities as allowed
by regulators for costs or credits that are reflected in current customer rates or are considered probable of being included in future
rates. The regulatory assets or liabilities are then relieved as the cost or credit is reflected in rates. Regulatory assets represent costs
that are expected to be fully recovered from customers in future rates while regulatory liabilities represent amounts that are
expected to be refunded to customers in future rates. These deferred costs have been excluded from the Company’s rate base and,
therefore, no return is being earned on the unamortized balances.

Regulatory assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:

December 31, Remaining
2007 2006 Recovery Periods

Assets

INCOME taXeS .vvreveiiiirnerir v $ 2,809 $ 2,415 Various
Postretirement benefits ..., 4,323 6.079 10-20 years
Utility plant retirement costs............c.cooooene 510 338 5 years
Rate case filing expenses..............ccooviniiinnins 67 161 1-2 years

$ 7,709 5 8,993
Liabilities
INCOME TAXOS . ee e e eaes $ 860 $ 867 1-50 years
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{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Certain items giving rise to deferred state income taxes, as well as a portion of deferred Federal income taxes related
primarily to differences between book and tax depreciation expense, are recognized for ratemaking purposes on a cash or
flow-through basis and will be recovered in rates as they reverse.

Postretirement benefits include (a} deferred pension expense in excess of contributions made to the plans, and (b) the
underfunded status of the pension plans. The underfunded status represents the excess of the projected benefit obligation
over the fair market value of the assets. Both are expected to be recovered in future years as additional contributions are
made. The recovery period is dependent on contributions made to the plans and the discount rate used to value the
obligations. The period is estimated at between 10 and 20 years.

The regulatory asset for utility plant retirement costs, including cost of removal, represents costs already incurred that are
expected to be recovered over a five-year period in rates. Rate case filing expenses are deferred and amortized over a
period of 1-2 years.

Regulatory liabilities relate mainly to deferred investment tax credits, and additionally to deferred taxes related
to postretirement death benefits and bad debts. These liabilities will be given back to customers in rates as tax deductions
occur over the next 1-50 years. Regulatory liabilities are part of other accrued expenses and other deferred credits on the
balance sheets.

Materials and Supplies Inventories

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at cost. Costs are determined using the average cost method.

Other Assets
Other assets consist mainly of the cash value of life insurance policies held as an investment by the Company for

reimbursement of costs and benefits associated with its supplemental retirement and deferred compensation programs.

Customers’ Advances for Construction

Customer advances are cash payments from developers, municipalities, customers or builders for construction of utility
plant and are refundable as operating revenues are earned and any notes receivable have been paid after the completion
of construction. After all refunds to which the customer is entitled are made, any remaining balance is transferred to
contributions in aid of construction. From 1986 - 1996 when customer advances were taxable income to the Company,
additional funds were collected from customers to cover the taxes. Those funds were recorded as a liability within
Customer Advances and are being amortized as deferred income over the tax life of the underlying assets.

Contributions in Aid of Construction
Contributions in Aid of Construction is composed of (1) direct, non-refundable contributions from developers, customers
or builders for construction of water infrastructure and (ii) customer advances that have become non-refundable.
Contributions in aid of construction are deducted from the Company’s rate base, and therefore, no return is earned on
property financed with contributions. The PPUC requires that contributions received remain on the Company’s balance
sheet indefinitely as a long-term liability.

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains
and losses be included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses
on interest rate swaps, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along

with net income, are components of comprehensive income.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

The Company utilizes an interest rate swap agreement to convert a portion of its variable-rate debt to a fixed rate. The
Company has designated the interest rate swap agreement as a cash flow hedge. Interest rate swaps are contracts in which a
series of interest rate cash flows are exchanged over a prescribed period. The notional amount on which the interest payments

are based is not exchanged.

As a derivative, the interest rate swap is recorded on the balance sheet in other deferred credits at fair value. The effective
portion of the gain or loss on a derivative designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedging instrument is initially reported
as a component of other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into earnings as interest expense in the same
period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the
derivative instrument, which has been minimal to date, is recognized currently in earnings. During the twelve months ending
December 31, 2008, the Company expects to reclassify $45 (net of tax) from other comprehensive loss to earnings as an
expense. The interest rate swap will expire on October 1, 2029.

Interest rate derivative financial instruments receive hedge accounting treatment only if they are designated as a hedge and
are expected to be, and are, effective in substantially reducing interest rate risk arising from the assets and liabilities identified
as exposing the Company to risk. Those derivative financial instruments that do not meet the hedging criteria would be
classified as trading activities and would be recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in income. Derivative
hedge contracts must meet specific effectiveness tests (i.e., over time the change in their fair values or cash flows due to the
designated hedge risk must be within 80 to 125 percent of the opposite change in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged
assets or liabilities). Further, if the underlying financial instrument differs from the hedged asset or liability, there must
be a clear economic relationship between the prices of the two financial instruments. If periodic assessment indicates
derivatives no longer provide an effective hedge, the derivative contracts would be closed out and settled or classified as a
trading activity.

Income Taxes
Certain income and expense items are accounted for in different time periods for financial reporting than for income tax

reporting purposes.

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and lability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. To the extent such income taxes increase or decrease future rates, an offsetting

regulatory asset or liability has been recorded.

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are being amortized to income over the average estimated service
lives of the related assets. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, deferred investment tax credits amounted to $1,005 and
$1,044, respectively.




THE YORK WATER COMPANY 2007 Annual Report

e
‘! '_ - J na t tements

Akl S T 5 n* BN

{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

Allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) represents the cost of funds used for construction purposes during
the period of construction. These costs are reflected as non-cash income during the construction period and as an addition to
the cost of plant constructed. The PPUC approved rate was 10.04% for 2007, 2006 and 2005. AFUDC is recovered through

water rates as utility plant is depreciated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with
a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents except for those instruments earmarked to fund construction
expenditures or repay long-term debt.

The Company had a book overdraft of $328 and $51 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The book overdraft
represents outstanding checks and other items which had not cleared the bank as of the end of the period. The overdraft is
included in accounts payable on the balance sheet and the change in overdraft position is recorded as a financing activity on
the statement of cash flows.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain 2006 and 2005 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect

on net income.

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes.” FIN No. 48 prescribes (a) a consistent recognition threshold and (b) a measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and
provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting, disclosure and transition. This
interpretation was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company evaluated and adopted this
interpretation in January 2007 concluding that there were no uncertain tax positions meeting the recognition and
measurement test of FIN No. 48, The Company will continue to monitor tax positions going forward.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” te eliminate the diversity in practice that
exists due to the different definitions of fair value and the limited guidance for applying those definitions. SFAS No. 157
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (an exit price), as opposed to the price that would be paid to acquire
the asset or received to assume the liability at the measurement date (an entry price). SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The
Company has evaluated this standard and determined that it did not have a material effect on financial position and results
of operations. The Company adopted this standard in January 2008.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans.” SFAS No. 158 requires (1) recognition of the funded status of a benefit plan in the balance sheet,
{2) recognition in other comprehensive income of gains or losses and prior service costs or credits arising during the period
but which are not included as components of periodic benefit cost, (3) measurement of defined benefit plan assets and
obligations as of the balance sheet date, and (4) disclosure of additional information about the effects on periodic benefit cost
for the following fiscal year arising from delayed recognition in the current period. The requirements to recognize the
funded status of a plan and te comply with disclosure provisions were effective as of the end of the fiscal year that ends
after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the balance sheet date is
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. The Company adopted this standard as of December 31, 2006, and
has accordingly reported the unfunded status of its defined benefit pension plans as well as the required disclosures. The
requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the balance sheet date, effective after December 15, 2008,

will have no impact, as the Company’s plans are already measured at the balance sheet date.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “Establishing the Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities,”
to permit all entities to choose to elect t measure eligible financial instruments at fair value. The decision to elect the fair
value option should be made on an instrument-by-instrument basis with certain exceptions. If the fair value option is
elected, an entity must report unrealized gains and losses in earnings at each subsequent reporting date, and recognize
upfront costs and fees related to those items in earnings as incurred and not deferred. SFAS No. 159 applies to fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, with early adoption permitted for an entity that has also elected to apply the provisions
of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” The Company has evaluated this standard and determined that it did not
impact financial position or results of operations. The Company adopted this standard in January 2008.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations.” The statement establishes principles and
requirements for how the acquirer (1) recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired,
the liabilities assumed, and any noncentrolling interest in the acquiree, (2} recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired
in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase, and (3) determines what information to disclose to enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. This statement is
effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2008. This statement will not have an impact on the Company’s
financial statements unless another company is purchased.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements-an
amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS No. 160 requires all entities to report noncontrolling {(minority) interests in subsidiaries
as equity in the consolidated financial statements and it requires consolidated net income to include amounts attributable
to both the parent and noncontrolling interest. This statement is effective for annual perieds beginning after December 15, 2008.

This statement will not affect the Company’s financial statements since there are no subsidiaries.
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2. ACQUISITIONS

On May 16, 2007, the Company announced that it had entered into an agreemenl to acquire the water system of West
Manheim Township in York County, Pennsylvania. This acquisition is expected to result in the addition of 2,100 customers
and will cost approximately $2,075. The agreement was approved by the PPUC on December 20, 2007, and now awaits
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (DEP} approval on the construction permits. Upon approval by DEF,
the Company will construct a main from its current distribution system to interconnect with West Manheim'’s distribution
system. The interconnection and closing on this acquisition are expected to occur in the fourth quarter of 2008.

On January 5, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of the water system of Abbottstown Borough which served
approximately 400 customers in Adams County, Pennsylvania. The purchase price of approximately $900 was less than the
depreciated original cost of these assets. The Company has recorded a negative acquisition adjustment of approximately
$131 and is amortizing this credit over the remaining life of the acquired assets. The purchase was funded through
internally-generated funds and short-term borrowings. The Company began serving the customers of Abbottstown Borough
in January, 2007,

On November 15, 2005, the Company acquired the Mountain View Water Company. In lieu of an actual payment for the
system, the Company extended its distribution system to connect to the Mountain View system and provided facility
upgrades for the Mountain View system as well. This acquisition added approximately 260 customers.

On July 8, 2005, the Company acquired 100% of the capital stock of Spring Grove Water Company for a purchase price
of approximately $973. Of the total price, $645 was paid from borrowings under the Company’s lines of credit. Up to $328
may be paid to the former owner in installments based on the amount of water such former owner purchases from the
Company over the 60-month period following the closing. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had made installment
payments totaling approximately $155. The acquired company provided water service to 21 customers just outside the
Borough of Spring Grove. The acquisition included assets with a book value of $284 and assumed liabilities of $25. The
Company recorded an acquisition adjustment of $715 and is amortizing these costs over the remaining life of the
acquired assets.

Also on July 6, 2005, the Company acquired the water utility assets of Spring Grove Borough for a purchase price of
approximately $1,312, which is less than the depreciated original cost of these assets. The Company recorded a negative
acquisition adjustment of $514 and is amortizing this credit over the remaining life of the acquired assets. The Company
used borrowings under its lines of credit to fund this purchase. This acquisition added approximately 850 customers.

The Company began to include the operating results of the acquired systems in its operating results on the acquisition
dates. The results have been immaterial to total company results.
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3. INncoMmE TAXES

The provisions for income taxes consist of:

2007 2006 2005

Federal CUITENE .o.ocvecieece ettt sttt s see s smnts e $ 1,946 $ 1,295 $ 1,979
SEAEE CUITENE ..ottt et sm e means s s ae et ssmenea s eanes 603 404 716
Federal deferred ... srnsissese e sessse s ser e 1,170 1,507 807
State deferred ..ot e 12 28 (80)
Federal investment tax credit, net of current utilization.........ccco...... 39 (38) (39)
Total INCOME EAXES....evvermeeeiriiierre i iare s ses e e ssessssaresresassensersress $ 3,692 % 3,196 $ 3,383

A reconciliation of the statutory Federal tax provision (34%) to the total provision follows:

2007 2006 2005
Statutory Federal tax provision ..., $ 3,436 $ 3,158 $ 3,133
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit.. 407 285 420
Tax-exempt interest ......cc......... S (21) (75) (67)
Amortization of investment tax credit ... (39) (39) (39)
Cash value of life INSUrance ... s (29) (34) (28)
Domestic production deduction..........cneecn, (73) (42) (38)
OHBET, Mttt eea e bbb annt bbb en s 1 (57} -
TOta]l TNCOMIE LAXES v.ceeerieeieiee et e et eeeemst st s et e emeeme et aanas $ 3,692 $ 3,156 $ 3,383

The tax effects of temporary differences between book and tax balances that give rise to significant portions of the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabifities as of December 31, 2007 and 20086 are summarized in the following table:

Deferred tax assets: 2007 2006
Reserve for doubtful accounts .........ooiveeeeeieeee e, $ 78 $ 70
Deferred compensation ... e 829 855
Customers’ advances and contributions ..o 20 252
Deferred taxes associated with the gross-up of revenues necessary
to return, in rates, the effect of temporary differences 70 62

PONISIONS ..o crrrrrrrrreecsreesesieameee e ete e seererresnssnareesseneseemmennes e e s rrnes v . 868 1,581
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap.. s . 191 69
Costs deducted for book, not fOr taX ..ccee i 59 52

Total deferred ax ASSEES......cceii ettt 2,296 2,941
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accelerated depreciation ... 15,707 14,342
Investment tax Credit. ... 597 620
Deferred taxes associated with the gross-up of revenues necessary

to recover, in rates, the effect of temporary differences ..., 861 691

Regulatory asset for pensions........... 1,755 2,497
Costs deducted for tax, Not fOr DOOK ... ssmserees 208 202

Total deferred tax HabilIties......oooo oot 19,128 18,352

Net deferred tax hability ... $ 16,832 $ 15411
Reflected on balance sheets as:
Current deferred tax asset ........cc.cereerniiiinseceereises s sssases e $ (132) % (118)
Noncurrent deferred tax liability ..o 16,964 15,529

Net deferred tax liability........coociin, $ 16,832 % 15,411

No valuation allowance is required for deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. In assessing the soundness of deferred tax
assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible. Management coensiders the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and the current regulatory
environment, management believes it is more likely than not the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences.
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The Company adopted FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” in January 2007.

The Company determined that there were no uncertain tax positions meeting the recognition and measurement test of FIN

No. 48 recorded in the years that remain open for review by taxing authorities. The Federal income tax returns for the years

2004 through 2006 remain open, and the state income tax return for 2006 remains open. The Company has not yet filed tax

returns for 2007, but has not taken any new positions in its 2007 income tax provision.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in other expenses. The Company

recorded interest and penalties of $5 for the year ended December 31, 2007. There were no interest or penalties for the years

ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

4, LoNG-TERM DEBT AND SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 is summarized in the following table:

2007 2006
3.60% Industrial Development Authority Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1994, due 2009..........oomrivieeceeee i s $ 2,700 % 2,700
3.75% Industrial Development Authority Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1995, due 2000 ... 4,300 4,300
4.05% Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority
Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series A, due 20016 i, 2,350 2,350
5.00% Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority
Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series A, due 2016.........coooovivvimrrvninessemnsesnsinnes 4,950 4,950
10.17% Senior Notes, Series A, due 2019 ... s s e see 6,000 6,000
9.60% Senior Notes, Series B, e 2019 ot estese et resssss s reasbesss e nas 5,000 5,000
1.00% Pennvest Loan, due 2019 ....cooiiicmnmrcinimnneeesmresneessesevnesnssinssnrssscssssssveassssssrss sos 495 535
10.05% Senior Notes, Series C, due 2020 ...t teeseee sttt s 6,500 6,500
8.43% Senior Notes, Series D, due 2022 ... o eeiceeeecceeeeeseveeeseeeeeee e ssreneemeeestas 7,500 7,500
Variable Rate Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority
Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series B, due 2029 12,000 12,000
4.75% Industrial Development Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2006, due 2036 10,500 10,500
Committed Line of Credit, due 2009 ... s “ 8,210 -
Total leng-term debt ..., 70,505 62,335
Less current maturities.... ... {12,040) (1,240)
Long-term portion..........cooeeennn. $ 58,465 $ 61,095
Payments due by period:
2008 2009 2010 201 2012
$12,040 $10,951 $4,341 s 542

Included in payments due by period are payments of $12,000 in 2008 on the variable rate bonds {due 2029} which could be

refunded at any time. 2009 payments include the payback of the committed line of credit.

The holders of our $12,000 variable rate PEDFA Series B Bonds may tender their bonds at any time. When the bonds are
tendered, they are subject to an annual remarketing agreement, pursuant to which a remarketing agent attempts to remarket the
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4. LONG-TERM DEBT AND SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

tendered bonds pursuant to the terms of the Indenture. The Company also has a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement (also known as
a liquidity facility) whereby bonds which cannot be remarketed are purchased by a financial institution (PNC Bank). If PNC Bank is
unable to remarket or sell the bonds within 6 months, the Company must begin to buy back the bonds in monthly instaliments over
a five-year period. The effect of this arrangement has historically allowed the Company to classify these bonds as long-term debt.

In January 2008, the credit rating of the insurer of the bonds was downgraded, and as a result, all of the bonds were tendered.
As a result of these events, we have classified the $12,000 variable rate debt as short term on the balance sheet. The remarketing
agent is currently attempting to remarket the bonds, but these efforts may not be successful. Also, the terms of the standby
agreement permit PNC Bank to terminate the agreement after an insurer credit downgrade has occurred. If the remarketing agent
is unable to remarket the bonds, it is likely that PNC Bank will terminate the standby agreement and the Company will be
required to refund and refinance all of the bonds. The Company is currently looking into both fixed and variable financing options
that will best satisfy both short-term and long-term objectives. The Company also has sufficient line of credit capacity to be able
to buy the bonds back temporarily until a more permanent refinancing can be obtained.

The Company may elect to have the Series B Bonds redeemed, in whole or in part, on any date that interest is payable for a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. The Series B
Bonds are also subject to mandatory redemption for the same redemption price in the event that the Internal Revenue Service
determines that the interest payable on the Series B Bonds is includable in gross income of the holders of the bonds for federal tax
purposes. The variable interest paid to bondholders is calculated using the PEDFA tax-exempt rate which averaged 3.71% in 2007.

In connection with the $12,000 PEDFA loan agreement, mentioned above, we entered into an interest rate swap with PNC Bank,
National Association in order to hedge against interest rate fluctuations due to the variable interest rate under the terms of the
loan agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the interest rate swap, we are obligated periodically to pay an amount based on a fixed
interest rate of 3.16%, and we will receive an amount based on a variable rate. The variable rate is based on a percentage of the
one-month LIBOR. If the rate we receive from the swap counterparty (PNC) approximates the variable rate paid to bondholders,
we will effectively fix our interest rate at 3.16% per annum. As of December 31, 2007, there was a spread of 51 basis points which
equates to an effective rate of 3.67%. The all-in interest rate (including variable interest and swap payments) for the year 2007
averaged 3.77%. The interest rate swap will terminate on the maturity date of the Series B Bonds (which is the same date as the
maturity date of the loan under the loan agreement), unless sooner terminated pursuant to its terms. In the event the interest rate
swap terminates prior to the maturity date of the Series B Bonds, either we or PNC Bank may be required to make a termination
payment to the other based on market conditions at such time. If we decide to refund and refinance the variable rate bonds, the
swap may continue or it may be terminated depending on the option we choose. If the Company had terminated the rate swap
as of February 27, 2008, the Company’s termination payment would have amounted to $405. Notwithstanding the terms of the

swap agreement, we are ultimately obligated for all amounts due and payable under the loan agreement.

Interest rate swap agreements derive their value from underlying interest rates. These transactions involve both credit and
market risk. The notional amounts are amounts on which calculations, payments, and the value of the derivative are based.
Notional amounts do not represent direct credit exposure. Direct credit exposure is limited to the net difference between the
calculated amounts to be received and paid, if any. Such difference, which represents the fair value of the swap, is reflected on the
Company’s balance sheet.

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to the agreement. The

Company controls the credit risk of its financial contracts through credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures, and does

not expect the counterparty to default on its obligations.
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On October 1, 2006, the York County Industrial Development Authority, or the YCIDA, issued $10,500 aggregate principal
amount of Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 for the benefit of the Company. The YCIDA then loaned the proceeds of
the offering to the Company pursuant to a loan agreement. The loan agreement provides for a $10,500 loan bearing interest at
4.75%. The bonds and the related loan will mature on October 1, 2036. The loan agreement contains various covenants and
restrictions. We believe that we are in compliance with all of these restrictions. The proceeds, net of issuance costs, were used to

pay down short-term borrowings incurred for various operations and construction projects.

The terms of the debt agreements limit in some cases the Company’s ability to borrow additional funds, to prepay its
borrowings and include certain restrictions with respect to declaration and payment of cash dividends and acquisition of the
Company’s stock. Under the terms of the most restrictive agreements, the Company cannot borrow in excess of 60% of its utility
plant, and cumulative payments for dividends and acquisition of stock since December 31, 1982 may not exceed $1,500 plus net
income since that date. As of December 31, 2007, none of the eamnings retained in the business are restricted under these
provisions. One of the notes also requires a pledge of $800 of receivables as security for the loan.

As of February 2008, the Company maintains unsecured lines of credit aggregating $28,000 with two banks. Loans granted under
these lines bear interest based on LIBOR plus 0.70% to 0.75%. The Company had $11,210 outstanding borrowings under its lines
of credit as of December 31, 2007, and no borrowings as of December 31, 2006. The weighted average interest rate on line of credit
borrowings as of December 31, 2007 was 5.62%. One line, amounting to $11,000 is payable upon demand, whereas the other 15 a
committed line with a revolving 2-year maturity. The Company is not required to maintain compensating balances and there are

no commitment fees on its lines of credit,

5. COMMON STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share are based upon the weighted average number of shares outstanding of 11,225,822 in 2007, 10,475,173 in 2006
and 10,359,374 in 2005, The Company does not have dilutive securilies outstanding.

Under the employee stock purchase plan, all full-time employees who have been employed at least six consecutive months
may purchase shares of the Company’s common stock through payroll deductions limited to 10% of gross compensation. The
purchase price is 95% of the fair market value {as defined). Shares issued during 2007, 2006 and 2005 were 5,398, 5,747 and 6,843,
respectively. As of December 31, 2007, 58,529 authorized shares remain unissued under the plan.

Under the optional dividend reinvestment plan, holders of the Company’s common stock may purchase additional shares.
The purchase price is 95% of the fair market value (as defined). Shares issued during 2007, 2006, and 2005 were 58,406, 55,695 and
62,581, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, 965,619 authorized shares remain unissued under the plan.

On August 28, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a three-for-two split of its common stock in the form of a stock
dividend. The split was effected on September 11, 2006 to shareholders of record as of September 1, 2006. One additional share of
common stock was issued for every two shares issued and outstanding as of September 1, 2006. The transaction had no effect on
total shareholders’ equity. Accordingly, the financial statements as well as share and per share amounts in this report have been
restated to reflect the stock split.

tn December 2006, the Company closed an underwritten public offering of 645,000 shares and an over-allotment of 94,750 shares
of its common stock. Janney Montgomery Scott LLC was the sole underwriter in the offering. The Company received net proceeds
in the offering, after deducting offering expenses and underwriter’s discounts and comumissions, of approximately $12.5 million. The
net proceeds were used to repay the Company’s remaining short-term borrowings and to fund operations and capital expenditures.
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains two defined benefit pension plans covering substantiaily all of its employees. The benefits are based
upon years of service and compensation over the last five years of service. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute
annually the amount permitted by the PPUC to be collected from customers in rates, but in no case less than the minimum

required contribution,

The following table sets forth the plans’ funded status as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The measurement of assets and
obligations of the plans is as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Obligations and Funded Status at December 31 2007 2006

Change in Benefit Obligation

Pension benefit obligation beginning of year.. o B 19,620 $ 19,508

SEIVICE COBL .o reeiesaee et s ere st e e ssseas s st esa st mnemene 724 685

L L] (] el -] OSSO 1,150 1,059

Plan amendments. ...t eae s 81 -

Actuarial Bain (1,540) (861}
Benefit PAYIMENtS....cvvvccmiiiiaiesessnesssessseeesceseneeanas {815) (771}
Pension benefit obligation end of year ..o 19,220 19,620

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year .. 15,725 14,423

Actual return on plan assets 1,372 1,521

Employer contributions ..........ccoooncecnmicniecenscececnenas 800 552

Benefits Paid ... (815) (771)
Fair value of plan assets end of year ..., 17,082 15,725

Funded Status of Plans at End of Year ....cccocenviiiiiieeee $ (2,138) $ (3,895)

The Company adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158 as of December 31, 2006, which require that the funded
status of defined benefit pension plans be fully recognized in the balance sheet. SFAS No. 158 also calls for the unrecognized
actuarial gain or loss, the unrecognized prior service cost and the unrecognized transition costs which were previously netted
with the funded status in a liability account, to be adjustments to shareholders’ equity (accumulated other comprehensive
income). Due to a rate order granted by the PPUC, the Company is permitted under SFAS 71 to defer the charges to
accumulated other comprehensive income as a regulatory asset. We believe these costs will be recovered in future rates

charged to customers.

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in

regulatory assets are as follows: 2007
Net actuarial loss arising during the period.......ccccooovrviiiinne $ (1,815)
Recognized actuarial 1085........coooooovoei e (107)
Prior service cost arising during the period ... 82
Recognized prior service cost.....cocmmeriiinnnas (265}
Total changes in regulatory asset during the year $ (2,105)
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Amounts recognized in regulatory assets that have not
yet been recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost consist of the following at December 31: 2007 2006

Net actuarial loss $ 1434 $ 3,356

Prior service cost 155 338

Regulatory asset $ 1589 $ 3,69

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

are as follows: 2007 2006 2005
Net Periodic Benefit Cost

SEIVICE COSt.eiririririniiiririiiimi e reae s e re st sttt e eas $ 724 $ 685 $ 587
Interest Cost....vovereiiiieiiiiiiiriiee e 1,150 1,059 1,017
Expected return on planassets.............coooiiiinnn, (1,097) (982) (961)
Amortization of 1085 ........cvmvmviiiiii s 107 225 147
Amortization of prior service cost........ccooevvveeennnn. 265 268 279
Rate-regulated adjustment ........o...oociiie v (349) (703) (619}
Net periodic benefit cost..........ooooviiii, $ 800 $ 552 $ 450

The rate-regulated adjustment set forth above is required in order to reflect pension expense for the Company in accordance
with the method used in establishing water rates. The Company is permitted by rate order of the PPUC to expense pension
costs to the extent of contributions and defer the remaining expense to regulatory assets to be collected in rates at a later date
as additional contributions are made.

The estimated costs for the defined benefit pension plans relating to the December 31, 2007 balance sheet that will be
amortized from regulatory assets into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $33. The Company plans to
contribute $800 to the plans in 2008.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid in each of the
next five years and the subsequent five years in the aggregate:

2008 2009 2010 2m 2012 2013-2017

$1,048 $1,080 $1,085 $1,062 51,062 $6,832

The accumulated benefit obligation for both defined benefit pension plans was $16,517 and $16,427 at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. The following table shows the accumulated benefit obligation, the projected benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets for each plan:

Generat and Administrative Plan Union-Represented Plan

2007 2006 2007 20086

Accumulated benefit obligation......cco.ccecmiiiccinns $ 10,557 $ 10438 $ 5960 $ 5989

Projected benefit obligation ..., 12,449 12,468 6,771 7,152

Fair value of plan assets ..o, 10,527 9,496 6,555 6,229
39
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINUED)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit

obligations at December 31: 2007 2006
DISCOUNE FALC v 6.50% 5.90%
Rate of compensation increase ... 4.00 - 5.00% 5.00%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net

periodic benefit cost for years ended December 31: 2007 2006 2005

DHSCOUNE FALE v e 5.90% 5.50% 5.90%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of compensation increase .....o.oeoveieereencnnniens 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The selected long-term rate of return on plan assets (7.0%) was primarily based on the asset allocation of the Plan’s assets
{approximately 60% equity securities and 40% debt securities}. Analysis of the historic returns of these asset classes and

projections of expected future returns were considered in setting the long-term rate of return.

The Company’s pension plans’ weighted-average asset
allocations at December 31, 2007 and 2006, by asset

category are as follows:
Plan Assets at December 31

Asset Category 2007 2006
Equity securities ...........oocoiiiin 61% 61%
Debt securities ; 35% 38%
014 31 SRR 4% 1%

TOtAl et e e 100% 100%

The investment objective of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans is that of Balanced Growth. Our weighted-average
target asset allocations are 60% equity securities and 40% debt securities. Our investment performance objectives are to exceed
the annual rate of inflation as measured by the Consumer Price Index by 3%, and to exceed the annualized total return of
specified benchmarks applicable to the funds within the asset categories.

Further guidelines within equity securities include: (1) holdings in any cne company cannot exceed 5% of the portfolio;
(2} a minimum of 20 individual stocks must be included in the domestic stock portfolio; (3) @ minimum of 30 individual stocks
must be included in the intermational stock portfolio; (4} equity holdings in any one industry cannot exceed 20-25% of the
portfolio; and (5) only 1).S.-denominated currency securities are permitted.

Further guidelines for debt securities include: (1) fixed income heldings in a single issuer are limited to 5% of the portfolio;
(2} acceptable investments include money market securities, U.S. Government and its agencies and sponsored entities” securities,
mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, and corporate securities; (3) purchases must be limited to investment grade or
higher; (4) non-U.S. dollar denominated securities are not permissible; and (5) high risk derivatives are prohibited.
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Equity securities include the York Water Company Common Stock in the amounts of $299 (1.8% of total plan assets) and
$342 (2.2% of total plan assets) at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company has a savings plan pursuant to the provisions of section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan
provides for elective employee contributions of up to 15% of compensation and Company matching contributions of 70%
of the participant’s contribution, up to a maximum annual Company contribution of $2 for each employee. The Company’s
contributions to the plan amounted to $171 in 2007, $139 in 2006, and $118 in 2005.

The Company has non-qualified deferred compensation and supplemental retirement agreements with certain members
of senior management. The future commitments under these arrangements are offset by corporate-owned life insurance
policies. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the present value of the future obligations was approximately $2,000 and $2,100,
respectively. The insurance policies included in other assets had a total cash value of approximately $2,900 and $2,700,
respectively, at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The Company’s expenses under the plans amounted to $11 in 2007, 511 in 2006
and $236 in 2005.

7. RATE INCREASES

The Company increased rates as approved by the PPUC in September 2006 (9.2%). The new rates became effective
September 15, 2006 and were designed to produce approximately $2.6 million in additional annual operating revenues. The
Company anticipates that it will file a rate increase request in 2008.

8. NoTES RECEIVABLE AND CUSTOMERS’ ADVANCES FOR CONSTRUCTION

The Company has agreements with four municipalities to extend water service into previously formed water districts. The
Company loaned funds to the municipalities to cover the costs related to the projects. The municipalities concurrently
advanced these funds back to the Company in the form of customers’ advances for construction. The municipalities are
required by enacted ordinances to charge application fees and water revenue surcharges (fees) to customers connected to
the system, which are remitted to the Company. The note principal and the related customer advance are reduced
periodically as operating revenues are earned by the Company from customers connected to the system and refunds of
advances are made. There is no due date for the notes or expiration date for the advances,

In March of 2007, the Company corrected a miscalculation of a note receivable with one of the water districts served. While
this recalculation was deemed immaterial to operations as a whole, it reduced notes receivable by $544, customer advances
by $473 and interest income by $71. The income reduction was applicable to the years 2003-2006. In June 2007, this same

water district paid off its note receivable in the amount of $543.

The Company has recorded interest income of $62 in 2007, $220 in 2006 and $198 in 2005. Interest rates on the notes
outstanding at December 31, 2007 vary from 6.75% to 7.5%.
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8. NOTES RECEIVABLE AND CUSTOMERS' ADVANCES FOR {CONSTRUCTION (CONTINUED)

Included in the accompanying balance sheets at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were the following amounts related to

these projects.

2007 2006
Notes receivable, including interest..........ccooooiiiir e % 610 $ 1,941
Customers’ advances fOr CONSHUCHOT .......ccccovuiieiiiee et sae e 1,079 2,511

The Company has other customers’ advances for construction totaling $20,742 and $22,710 at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

9. COMMITMENTS

Based on its capital budget, the Company plans to spend approximately $24,640 in 2008 and $15,350 in 2009 on construction.
These capital expenditures are net of amounts financed by customer advances. The Company plans to finance ongoing capital
expenditures with internally-generated funds, borrowings against the Company’s lines of credit, proceeds from the issuance
of common stock under its dividend reinvestment plan (stock issued in lieu of cash dividends), or DRIP, and employee stock
purchase plan, or ESPP, customer advances, potential long-term debt and common stock issues and the distribution surcharge
allowed by the PPUC. The distribution surcharge allows the Company to add a charge to customers’ bills for qualified
replacement costs of certain infrastructure without submitting a rate filing,

The Company has remaining capital commitments with regard to its filter plant upgrade and the West Manheim Township
acquisition. Of the total committed of approximately $8,211, $4,869 remains to be spent as of December 31, 2007,

As of December 31, 2007, the Company employed 109 full time people, 41 under union contract. The current contract was
ratified during 2007 and expires on April 30, 2010.

The Company is involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various courts and governmental agencies
concerning water service and other matters. The Company expects that the ultimate disposition of these proceedings will not
have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of financial instruments has been determined based on available market information and appropriate
valuation methodelogies. However, considerable judgment is necessarily required in interpreting market data to develop
the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that
the Company might realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value.

The carrying amount of current assets and liabilities that are considered financial instruments approximates their fair value as
of the dates presented. The Company’s long-term debt, with a carrying value of $70,505 at December 31, 2007, and $62,335 at
December 31, 2006, had an estimated fair value of approximately $80,000 and $70,000 in 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
weighted average rates used to calculate the fair value were based on a multiple of the 2, 5, 10, 15 and 30-year Municipal Bond
yields. The 2007 rates ranged from 3.10% to 5.76% and the 2006 rates ranged from 3.63% to 5.41%.
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{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

The interest rate swap is being carried at its fair value. The fair value of the swap was a loss of $473 as of December 31, 2007
and $171 as of December 31, 2006. Fair values relating to derivative instruments reflect the estimated amounts that the
Company would receive or pay to terminate the contracts as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, based on
estimated future cash flows.

The Company’s customers’ advances for construction and notes receivable have carrying values at December 31, 2007 of
$21,821 and $610, respectively. At December 31, 2006, customers’ advances for construction and notes receivable had
carrying values of $25,221 and $1,941, respectively. The relative fair values of these amounts cannot be accurately estimated
since the timing of future payment streams is dependent upon several factors, including new customer connections,
customer consumption levels and future rate increases.

11. SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

On January 25, 1999, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a Shareholder Rights Plan designed to protect the
Company’s shareholders in the event of an unsolicited, unfair offer to acquire the Company. Each outstanding commen
share is entitled to one Right, which is evidenced by the common share certificate. In the event any person acquires 15% or
more of the outstanding common shares or commences a tender or exchange offer which, if consummated, would result in
a person owning 15% or more of the outstanding common shares, the Rights will begin to trade independently from the
common shares, and would entitle the holder to purchase the Company’s common shares at a substantial discount from the
market price. If the Company is involved in a merger or other business combination at any time after the Rights become
exercisable, the Rights will entitle the holder to acquire shares of the acquiring company at a substantial discount from the
market price. The Rights are redeemable by the Company at a redemption price of 30.01 per Right at any time before the
Rights become exercisable. The Rights will expire on January 24, 2009, unless redeemed prior to such date.

12. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

2007 First Second Third Fourth Year
Water operating revenue................ $7,385 $7,962 $8,280 $7,806 $31,433
Water operating income................. 3,192 3,603 3,914 3,455 14,164
Net income .......ocoiiiiiiiin. 1,326 1,661 1,757 1,670 6,414
Basic earnings per share ............... 12 15 15 15 57
Dividends per share...................... 118 118 118 21 475
2006

Water operating revenue............... $6,614 $7,016 $7.665 57,363 $28,658
Water operating income ............... 2,905 3,199 3.676 3,124 12,904
Net income ..........ccooviviiiiiinienn, 1,259 1,466 1,739 1,627 6,09
Basic earnings per share............... 12 14 a7 15 58
Dividends per share..................... 12 112 12 18 454
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Suipplemental informati&n (Unaudi.ted)

(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Selected Financial Data

Income

Operating REVENUES. ... s
Operating EXPenSes ...ttt
Operating INCOME. ... s
Interest and Dbt EXPense ...t ecnenns
Net INCOIME ... e e
Percent Change in Net Income Compared to Prior Year .......cccoovicvvvniiiiinnns
Common Stock Dividends......coiiiici i
Dividend Payout Ratio ... i
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding.........

Basic Earnings Per Weighted Average Common Share.........ccoooiiennnn,
Number of Common Shares Qutstanding .....c.....ccovivsrniiinn,
ROE on Year End Common Equity ........

Common Stock Dividends Per Share
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities .........covvvevrvrmmeniiomreniininenens

Balance Sheet

Common Stockholders’ EQUity ..o
Long-Term Debt Including Current Maturities.........coccoercnnininnencens
Total CapitaliZation ... e
Percent Common Stockholders’ Equity ..o
Percent Long-Term Debt .o
Net Utility PIATE oot s sae s seaecas

Operating Data

Revenue Class
RT3 L o U T U

Construction Expenditures ...,

Other Operating Data

INUmMber of CUSLOMIETS ....oiieeceeeer e e e aeree s b ree st s s e brsansnen
Number of Employees....... e
Common SharehOlders ... .....cciiiiiiicre e rrrrr s sar s
Book Value Per Common Share ...
Market Value at Year End ..o esssessssssasens
Market Value to Book Value......cccevveeeneeee
P/E RO oottt i b r bbb asar e r b a b e a3s e et b b b et e s e aab e r b s ssarer e

2007

$31,433
$17,269
$14,164
$3.916
$6,414
5.3%
$5,332
83%
11,225,822
%0.57
11,264,923
9.5%
$0.475
$10,040

$67,272
$70,505
$137.777
49%
51%
$191,046

$19,722
$9,290
$2,421
$31,433

$19,754

58,890
109
1,443
$5.97
$15.50
260%
27.2

Years Ended December 31

2006

$28,658
$15,754
$12,904
$3,727
$6,091
4.4%
$4,820
79%
10,475,173
$0.58
11,201,119
9.3%
$0.454
$7.116

$65,361
$62,335
$127,696
51%
49%
$173,800

$17,972
$8,497
$2,189
$28,658

$21,682

57,578
106
1,463
$5.84
$17.88
306%
30.8

2005

$26,805
$14,017
$12,788
$3,423
$5,833
10.0%
$4,392
75%
10,359,374
$0.56
10,399,995
11.6%
$0.424
$8,451

$50,415
$51,874
$102,289
49%
51%
$154,774

$16,737
58,009
$2,059
$26,805

$15,553

55,731
97
1,449
$4.85
$17.23
356%
30.8
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{In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts}

rmation {Unaudited)

2004

$22,504
$12,595
$9,909
$2,132
$5,301
19.2%
$3,930
74%
9,937,836
$0.53
10,330,571
11.0%
$0.394
$7,670

$48,037
$51,913
$99,950
48%
52%
$139,454

$13,789
$6,893
$1,822
$22,504

$25,981

53,134
95
1,459
$4.65
$12.93
278%
243

2003

$20,889
511,555
$9,334
$2,523
$4,448

17 4%
$3,512
79%
9,579,690
$0.46
9,628,845
11.4%
$0.367
$6,772

$39,056
$32,652
$71,708
54%
46%
$115,724

$12,574
$6,598
$1,717
$20,889

$11,527

51,916
R
1,392
$4.05
$12.13
299%
26.0

2002

$19,553
511,220
$8,333
$2,692
$3,790
-5.4%
$3,323
88%
9,495,591
50.40
9,547,205
10.2%
$0.350
$6,172

$37,216
$32,690
$69,906
33%
47%
$106,217

$11,527
$6,385
$1,641
$19,553

$6,310

51,023
89
1,353
$3.90
$9.47
243%
23.7

2001

$19,403
$10,468
$8,935
$2,856
$4,006
6.6%
$3,126
78%
9,229,875
50.43
9,462,996
11.2%
$0.337
$6,734

$35,892
$32,728
$68,620
32%
48%
$101,753

$11,571
$6,265
$1,567
$19,403

$7.096

50,079
90
1,327
$3.79
$9.75
257%
22.5

45

2000

$18,481
$10,008
$8,473
$2,798
$3,758
19.2%
$2,950
78%
9,032,025
$0.42
9,128,199
11.6%
$0.327
$6,371

$32,438
$32,765
$65,203
50%
50%
$96,434

$10,980
$6,033
$1,468
$18,481

$6,414

49,195
90
1,307
$3.55
$6.00
169%
14.3

1999

$17,511
$10,255
$7.256
$2,644
$3,154
0.6%
$2,824
90%
8,970,801t
50.35
8,967,273
10.2%
$0.315
$5,450

$30,830
$32,800
563,630
48%
52%
$91,725

$10,199
$6,004
$1,308
$17,511

$7,050

48,144
90
1,364
$3.44
$5.59
162%
16.0

1998

$17,137
$9,721
$7,416
$2,674
$3,135
0.5%
$2,745
88%
8,853,855
$0.35
8,939,166
10.3%
$0.310
$6,171

$30,380
$32,000
$62,380
49%
51%
$86,401

$10,016
$5.888
$1,233
$17,137

$4,990

47,173
2]
1,325
$3.40
$6.42
189%
18.2

1997

$16,997
$9,679
$7,318
$2,707
$3,120
13.0%
$2,650
85%
8,737 407
$0.36
8,804,346
10.7%
$0.303
$5,071

$29,151
$32,000
$61,151
48%
52%
$83,155

$9,975
$5,850
$1,172
$16,997

$4,501

46,458
90
1,334
$3.31
$6.92
209%
194
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Directors, Officers, & Key Employees

BoarD OF DIRECTORS

John L. Finlayson & @
Age 67
Director Since September 2, 1993

Vice President,
Susquehanna Real Estate, LP

William T. Morris, P.E. "
Age 70
Director Since April 19, 1978

Chairman of the Board,
The York Water Company

(1) Member of the Executive Committee
(2) Member of the Audit Committee

Michael W. Gang, Esq. "'®
Age 57
Director Since January 22, 1996

Partner/Attorney,

Post & Schell PC, Attorneys at Law,
Post & Schell PC is counsel

to the Company

Irvin S. Naylor "
Age 72
Director Since October 31, 1960

Vice Chairman of the Board,
The York Water Company

President /Owner, Snow Time, Inc.,
Owns and Operates Ski Areas

(3) Member of the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation Committee

46

Jefirey R. Hines, P.E. "
Age 46
Director Since January 29, 2008

President and
Chief Executive Officer,
The York Water Company

Thomas C. Norrig W@ ®®
Age 69
Director Since June 26, 2000

Retired, Chairman of the Board,
P. H. Glatfelter Company,
Paper Manufacturer
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BoARD OF DIRECTORS

George W. Hodges @™
Age 57
Director Since June 26, 2002

Chairman,
The Wolf Organization, Inc.,
Distributor of Building Products

Jetfrey S. Osman "
Age 65
Director Since July 23, 2001

President and
Chief Executive Officer (Retired),
The York Water Company

DIrECTORS EMERITI

Josephine S. Appell
Horace Keesey Il
Chloé R. Eichelberger

Directors, Officers, & Key Employefes

George Hay Kain, 1 ¥
Age 59
Director Since August 25, 1986

Substitute School Teacher

Ernest J. Waters ®

Age 58
Director Since September 24, 2007

York Area Manager,
Met-Ed, a First Energy Company
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OFFICERS
& KEY EMPLOYEES

Jeffrey S. Osman

Age 65

President and Chief
Executive Officer (Retired)

NOILVIWIOIN] TVYNOILIAAVy

Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E.
Age 46

President and

Chief Executive Officer
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THE YORK WATER COMPANY
PART 1

{tem 1. Business.

The Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in 1816.

The business of the Company is to impound, purify and distribute water. The Company operates within its franchised
territory, which covers 39 municipalities within York County, Pennsylvania and seven municipalities within Adams
County, Pennsylvania. The Company is regulated by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, or PPUC, in the areas
of billing, payment procedures, dispute processing, terminattons, service territory and rate setting. The Company must
obtain PPUC approval before changing any of the aforementioned procedures. Water service is supplied through the
Company’s own distribution system. The Company obtains its water supply from the south branch and east branch of the
Codorus Creek, which drains an area of approximately 117 square miles. The Company has two reservoirs, Lake
Williams and Lake Redman, which together hold up 1o approximately 2.2 billion gallons of water. The Company has a
15-mile pipeline from the Susquehanna River to Lake Redman which provides access to an additional supply of 12.0
million gatlons of water per day. As of December 31, 2007, the Company's present average daily availability was 35.0
million gallons, and daily consumption was approximately 19.1 million gallens. As of December 31, 2007, the
Company's service territory had an estimated population of 171,000. Industry within the Company’s service territory is
diversified, manufacturing such items as fixtures and furniture, electrical machinery, food products, paper, ordnance
units, textile products, air conditioning systems, barbells and motorcycles.

The Company's business is somewhat dependent on weather conditions, particularty the amount of rainfall; however,
minimum customer charges are in place, and the Company expects to cover its fixed costs of operations under all likely
weather conditions. The Company's business does not require large amounts of working capital and is not dependent on
any singie customer or a very few customers.

During the five year period ended December 31, 2007, the Company maintained an increasing growth in number of
customers and distribution facilities. The Company presently has 109 full time employecs.

The following table sets forth certain of our summary statistical information.

(In thousands of dollars) For the Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Revenues

Residential § 19,722 $ 17,972 $ 16,737 $ 13,789 $ 12,514

Commercial and industrial 9,290 8,497 8,009 6,893 6,598

Other 2,421 2,189 2,059 1,822 1,717

Total § 31,433 £ 28,658 $ 26,805 § 22504 $ 20,889

Average daily consumption

(gatlons per day) 19,058,000 18,769,000 18,657,000 18,116,000 17,498,000
Miles of mains
at year-end 845 817 786 752 730

Additional distribution
mains installed/acquired

(fi.) 147,803 159,330 212,702 114,658 44958
Number of customers ’

at year-end 58,890 57,578 55,731 53,134 51,916
Population served

at year-end 171,000 166,000 161,000 158,000 156,000

Please refer to the “Highlights of Our 192nd Year” section of our 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders filed herewith as
Exhibit 13 for surmmary financial information for the last five years.



For further information. please see the Shareholder Information page of cur 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders filed
herewith as Exhibit 13.

Hem 1A. Risk Factors.

The rates we charge our customers are subject to regulation. 1f we are unable to obtain government approval of
our requests for rate increases, or if approved rate increases are untimely or inadequate to cover our investments
in utility plant and equipment and projected expenses, our results of operations may be adversely affected.

Our ability to maintain and meet our financial objectives is dependent upon the rates we charge our customers, which are
subject to approval by the PPUC. We file rate increase requests with the PPUC, from time to time, to recover our
investments in utility plant and equipment and projected expenses. Any rate increase or adjustment must first be justified
through documented evidence and testimony. The PPUC determines whether the investments and expenses are
recoverable, the length in time over which such costs are recoverable, or, because of changes in circumstances, whether a
remaining balance of deferred investments and expenses is no longer recoverable in rates charged to customers. Once a
rate increase application is filed with the PPUC, the ensuing administrative and hearing process may be lengihy and
costly. The timing of our rate increase requests are therefore dependent upon the estimated cost of the administrative
process in relation to ihe investments and expenses that we hope to recover through the rate increase.

We can provide no assurances that future requests will be approved by the PPUC; and, if approved, we cannot guarantee
that these rate increases will be granted in a timely or sufficient manner to cover the investments and expenses for which
we sought the rate increase. If we are unable to obtain PPUC approval of our requests for rate increases, or if approved
rate increases are untimely or inadequate to cover our investments in utility plant and equipment and projected expenses,
our results of operations may be adversely affected.

We are subject to federal, state and local regulation that may impose costly limitations and restrictions oo the way
we do business.

Various federal, state and local authorities regulate many aspects of our business. Among the most important of these
regulations are those relating to the quality of water we supply our customers and water allocation rights. Government
authorities continually review tbese regulations, particularly the drinking water quality regulations, and may propose new
or more restrictive requirements in the future. We are required to perform water quality tests that are monitored by the
PPUC, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection, or DEP, for the detection of certain chemicals and compounds in our water. If new or more restrictive
limitations on permissible levels of substances and contaminants in our water are imposed, we may not be able to
adequately predict the costs necessary to meet regulatory standards. If we are unable to recover the cost of implementing,
new water treatment procedures in response to more restrictive water quality regulations through our rates that we charge
our customers, or if we fail to comply with such regulations, it could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and resulis of operations,

We are also subject to water allocation regulations that control the amount of water that we can draw from water sources.
The Susquehanna River Basin Commission, or SRBC, and DEP regulate the amount of water withdrawn from streams in
the watershed for water supply purposes to assure that sufficient quantities are available to meet our needs and the needs
of other regulated users. In addition, government drought restrictions could cause the SRBC or DEP i¢ temporarily
reduce the amount of our allocations. If new or more restrictive water allocation regulations are implemented or our
allocations are reduced due to weather conditions, it may have an adverse effect on our ability to supply the demands of
our customers, and in turn, on our revenues and results of operations.

Qur business is subject to seasonal fluctuations, which could affect demand for our water service and our
revenues.

Demand for our water during the warmer months is generally greater than during cooler months due primarily to
additional requirements for water in connection with cooling systems, swimming pools, irrigation systems and other
outside water use. Throughout the year, and particularly during typically warmer months, demand will vary with
temperature and rainfall levels. If temperatures during the typically warmer months are cooler than expected, or there is
more rainfall than expected, the demand for our water may decrease and adversely affect our revenues.




Weather conditions and overuse may interfere with our sources of water, demand for water services, and our
ability to supply water to our customers.

We depend on an adequate water supply to meet the present and future demands of our customers and to continue our
expansion efforts. Unexpected conditions may interfere with our water supply sources. Prought and overuse may limit the
availability of surface water. These factors might adversely affect our ability to supply water in sufficient quantities to our
customers and our revenues and earnings may be adversely affected. Additionally, cool and wet weather, as well as
drought restrictions and our customers’ conservation efforts, may reduce consuraption demands, also adversely affecting
our revenue and earnings. Furthermore, freezing weather may also contribute to water ransmission interruptions caused
by pipe and main breakage. If we experience an interruption in our water supply, it could have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operations.

The current concentration of our business in central and southern Pennsylvania makes us susceptible to adverse
developments in Jocal economic and demographic conditions.

Clur service territory presently includes 39 municipalities within York County, Pennsylvania and seven municipalities
within Adams County, Pennsylvania. Qur revenues and operating results are therefore subject to local economic and
demographic conditions in the area. A change in any of these conditions could make it more costly or difficult for us to
conduct our business. In addition, any such change would have a disproportionatz effect on us, compared to water utility
companies that do not have such a geographic concentration.

Contamination of our water supply may cause disruption in our services and adversely affect our revenues.

Qur water supply is subject to contamination from the migration of naturally-occurring substances in groundwater and
surface systems and pollution resulting from man-made sources. In the event that our water supply is contaminated, we
may have to interrupt the use of that water supply until we are able to substitute the flow of water from an
uncontaminated water source through our interconnected transmission and distribution facilities. In addition, we may
incur significant costs in order to treat the contaminated source through expansion of our current treatment facilities or
development of new treatiment methods. Cur inability to substimite water supply from an uncontaminated water source, or
to adequately treat the contaminated water source in a cost-effective manner, may have an adverse effect on our revenues.

The necessity for inereased security has and may continue to resnlt in increased operating costs.

In the wake of the September 11, 2001 ferrorist attacks and the ensuing threats to the nation’s health and security, we
have taken steps to increase security measures at our facilities and heighten employee awareness of threats to our water
supply. We have also tightened our security measures regarding the delivery and handling of certain chemicals used in
our business. We have and will continue to bear increased costs for security precautions to protect our facilities,
operations and supplies. We are not aware of any specific threats to our facilities, operations or supplies. However, it is
possible that we would not be in a position to conirol the outcome of such events should they occur.

We depend on the availability of capital for expansion, construction and maintenance.

Qur ability to continue our expansion efforts and fund our construction and maintenance program depends on the
availability of adequate capital. There is no guarantee that we will be able to obtain sufficient capital in the future or that
the cost of capital will not be too high for future expansion and construction. In addition, approval from the PPUC must
be obtained prior to our sale and issuance of securtties. If we are unable to obtain approval from the PPUC on these
matters, or {0 obtain approval in a timely manner, it may affect our ability to effect transactions that are beneficial to us or
our shareholders. A single transaction may itself not be profitable but might siill be necessary to continue providing
service or to grow the business.

We may face competition from other water suppliers that may hinder our growth and reduce our profitability.

We face competition from other water suppliers for acquisitions, which may limit eur growth opportunities. Furthermore,
even afiter we have been the successful bidder in an acquisition, competing water suppliers may challenge our application
for extending our franchise territory to cover the target company’s market. Finally, third parties either supplying water
on a contract basis to municipalities or entering into agreements to operate municipal water systems might adversely
affect our business by winning contracts that may be beneficial to us. 1f we are unable to compete successfully with other




water suppliers for these acquisitions, franchise territories and contracts, it may impede our expansion goals and
adversely affect our profitability.

An important element of our growth strategy is the acquisition of water systems. Any pending or future
acquisitions we decide to undertake will involve risks.

The acquisition and integration of water systems is an important element in our growth strategy. This strategy depends
on identifying suitable acquisition opportunities and reaching mutually agreeable terms with acquisition candidates. The
negotiation of potential acquisitions as well as the integration of acquired businesses could require us to incur significant
costs. Further, acquisitions may result in dilution for the owners of our common stock, our incurrence of debt and
contingent liabilities and fluctuations in quarterly results. In addition, the businesses and other assets we acquire may not
achieve the financial results that we expect, which could adversely affect our profitability.

We have restrictions on our dividends. There can also be no assurance that we will continue to pay dividends in
the future or, if dividends are paid, that they will be in amounts similar to past dividends.

The terms of our debt instruments impose conditions on our ability to pay dividends. We have paid dividends on our
common stock each year since our inception in 1816 and have increased the amount of dividends paid each year since
1997. Our earnings, financial condition, capital requirements, applicable regulations and other factors, including the
timeliness and adequacy of rate increases, will determine both our ability to pay dividends on our common stock and the
amount of those dividends. There can be no assurance that we will continue to pay dividends in the fiture or, if dividends
are paid, that they will be in amounts similar to past dividends.

If we are unable to pay the principal and interest on our indebtedness as it comes due or we default under certain
other provisions of our loan documents, our indebtedness could be accelerated and our results of operations and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

Qur ability to pay the principal and interest on our indebtedness as it comes due will depend upon our current and future
performance. Our performance is affected by many factors, some of which are beyond our control. We believe that our
cash generated from operations, and, if necessary, borrowings under our existing credit facilities will be sufficient to
enable us to make our debt payments as they become due. If, however, we do not generate sufficient cash, we may be
required to refinance our obligations or sell additional equity, which may be on teims that are not as favorable to us. No
assurance can be given that any refinancing or sale of equity will be possible when needed or that we will be able to
negotiate acceptable terms. In addition, our failure to comply with certain provisions contained in our trust indentures and
loan agreements refating to our outstanding indebtedness could lead to a default under these documents, which could
result in an acceleration of our indebtedness.

We depend significantly on the services of the members of our senior management team, and the departure of any
of those persons could cause our operating results to suffer.

Our success depends significantly on the continued individual and collective contributions of our senior management
team. If we lose the services of any member of our senior management or are unable to hire and retain experienced
management personnel, our operating results could suffer.

There is a limited trading market for our common stock; you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the
price you pay for them.

Although our common stock is listed for trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market, the trading in our common stock
has substantially less liquidity than many other companies quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. A public
trading market having the desired characteristics of depth, liquidity and ordertiness depends on the presence in the market
of willing buyers and sellers of our common stock at any given time. This presence depends on the individual decisions
of investors and general economic and market conditions over which we have no control. Because of the limited volume
of trading in our common stock, a sale of a significant number of shares of our cornmon stock in the open market could
cause our stock price to decline.

The credit rating of the insurer of our 512 million variable rate PEDFA Series B Bonds was recently downgraded
and, as a result, all of the bonds were tendered. 1f our remarketing agent is not successful in remarketing the




bonds, our Standby Bond Purchase Agreement with PNC Bank may be terminated, and the Company may be
required to refund and refinance all of the bonds.

The holders of our $12,000 variable rate PEDFA Series B Bonds may tender their bonds at any time. When the bonds
are tendered, they are subject to an annual remarketing agreement, pursuant to which a remarketing agent attempts to
remarkel the tendered bonds pursueant to the terms of the Indenture. We also have a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement
(also known as a liquidity facility) whereby bonds which cannot be remarketed are purchased by a financial institution
(PNC Bank). If PNC Bank is unable to remarket or sell the bonds within 6 months, we must begin to buy back the bonds
in monthly installments over a five-year period.

In January 2008, the credit rating of the insurer of the bonds was downgraded, and as a result, all of the bonds were
tendered. The remarketing agent is currently attempting to remarket the bonds, but these efforts may not be snceessful.
Also, the terms of the standby agreement permit PNC Bank to terminate the agreement afier an insurer credit downgrade
has occurred. If the remarketing agent is unable to remarket the bonds, it is likely that PNC Bank will terminate the
standby agreement and we will be required to refund and refinance all of the bonds. We are currently investigating both
fixed and variable financing options that will best satisfy both short-term and long-term objectives, We also have
sufficient line of credit capacity to be able to buy the bonds back temporarily until a more perianent refinancing can be
achieved. There can be no assurances that we will receive terms as favorable as those of the bonds in any such
refinancing, which could adversely affect our results of operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

The Company has no unresolved staff comments.
Ttem 2. Properties.

Source of Supply

The Company has two impounding dams located in Y ork and Springfield Townships adjoining the Borough of Jacobus to
the south. The lower dam, the Lake Williams Impounding Dam, is constructed of compacted earth with a concrete core
wall and is 700 fect long and 58 feet high and creates a reservoir covering approximately 165 acres containing about 870
million gallons of water. About 800 acres surrcounding the reservaoir are planted with more than 1.2 million evergreen
trees, which the Company believes will protect the area both from pollution and also from soil erosion, which might
otherwise fill the reservoir with silt. The upper dam, the Lake Redman Impounding Dam, is constructed of compacted
earth and is 1,000 feet long and 52 feet high and creates a reservoir covering approximately 290 acres containing about
1.3 billion gallons of water. About 600 acres surrounding the reservoir are planted with grass, which the Company
believes will protect the area both from pollution and also from soil erosion, which might otherwise fill the reservoir with
silt.

In addition to the two impounding dams, the Company owns a 15-mile pipeline from the Susquehanna River to Lake
Redman that provides access to a supply of an additional 12.0 million gallons of water per day. As of December 31,
2007, the Company's present average daily availability was 35.0 million gallons, and daily consumption was
approximately 19.1 million gallons.

Pumping Stations

The Company's main pumping station is located in Spring Garden Township on the south branch of the Codorus Creek
about 1,500 feet upstream from its confluence with the west branch of the Codorus Creek and about four miles
downstream from the Company's lower irmpounding dam. The pumping station presently houses pumping equipment
consisting of three electrically driven centrifugal pumps and two dicsel-engine driven centrifugal pumps with a combined
pumping capacity of 68.0 million galions per day. The pumping capacity is more than double peak requirements and is
designed to provide an ample safety margin in the event of pump or power failure. In 2007, a large diesel backup
generator was added to provide power to our pumps in the event of an emergency. The raw water is pumped
approximately two miles to the filtration plant through pipes owned by the Company.

The Susquehanna River Pumping Station is located on the western shore of the Susquehanna River several miles south of
Wrightsville, PA. The pumping station is equipped with (3) Floway Vertical Turbine pumps rated at 6 million gallons
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per day each. The pumps are driven by (3) Caterpillar 3512 Diesel Engines rated at 1175 H.P. each. The pumping
station pumps water from the Susquehanna River approximately 15 miles through a2 combination of 30” and 36™ ductile
iron main to the Company’s upper impounding dam, Lake Redman.

Water Treatment

The Company's filtration plant is located in Spring Garden Township about onz-half mile south of the City of York.
Water at this plant is filtered through twelve dual media filters having a stated capacity of 31.0 million gallons per day
with a maximum supply of 42.0 million gallons per day for short periods if nzcessary. Based on an average daily
consumption in 2007 of approximately 19.1 million galions, the Company believes the pumping and filtering facilities are
adequate to meet present and anticipated demands. In 2005, the Company performed a capacity study of the filtration
plant and in 2007, began upgrading the facility to increase capacity for future growth. The project is expected to continue
over the next several years.

Transmission and Distribution

The distribution system of the Company has approximately 845 miles of main waler lines which range in diameter from 2
inches to 36 inches. The distribution system includes 24 booster stations and 27 standpipes and reservoirs capable of
storing approximately 56.0 million gallons of potable water. All booster stations are equipped with at least two pumps
for protection in case of mechanical failure. In 2008, the Company plans to construct new booster stations in the
northwest area of York, New Oxford and West Manheim Township. An additional standpipe is planned for West
Manheim Township.

Other Properties

The Company's distribution center and material and supplies warehouse are located at 1801 Mt. Rose Avenue,
Springettsbury Township and are composed of three one-story concrete block buildings aggregating 30,680 square feet.

The accounting and executive offices of the Company are located in one three-story and one two-story brick and masonry
buildings, containing a total of approximately 21,861 square feet, at 124 and 130 East Market Street, York, Pennsylvania.

All of the Company's properties described above are held in fee by the Company. There are no material encumbrances
on such properties,

In 1976, the Company entered into a Joint Use and Park Management Agreement with York County under which the
Company licensed use of certain of its lands and waters for public park purposes for a period of 50 years. This property
includes two lakes and is located on approximately 1,700 acres in Springfield and York townships. Of the Park’s
acreage, approximately 500 acres are subject to an automatically renewable one-year license, Under the Joint Use
Agreement, York County has agreed not 1o erect a dam upstream on the East Branch of the Codorus Creek or otherwise
obstruct the flow of the creek. The Joint Use Agreement subordinates the County’s use of the lands and waters for
recreational purposes to our prior and overriding use of the lands and waters for utility purposes.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
There ar¢ no material legal proceedings involving the Company.
Ttem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matter was submitted to a vote of the security holders during the fousth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this
report.

PART 11

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

The information set forth under the caption "Market for Common Stock and Dividends” and “Dividend Policy” of the
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2007 Annual Report to Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has no securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans with the exception of an
employee stock purchase plan. The employee stock purchase plan allows employees to purchase stock at a 5% discount
up to a maximum of 10% of their gross compensation. Under this plan, approximately 59,000 authorized shares remain
unissued as of December 31, 2007,

The information set forth under the caption “Company Performance” of the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2008
Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company did not repurchase any of its securities during the fourth quarter of 2007,
Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The information set forth under the caption "Highlights of Qur 192nd Year” of the 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The information set forth under the caption "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis
of Operations” of the 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders is incorporated hereia by reference.

This annual report on Form 10-K contains certain matters which are not historical facts, but which are forward-looking
statements. Words such as "may,” "should,” "believe," "anticipate,” "estimate,” "expect,” "intend," "plan” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. The Company intends these forward-looking statements
to qualify for safe harbor from liability established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
forward-looking statements include certain information relating to the Company’s business strategy; statements including,
but not limited to:

s  expected profitability and results of operations;

e goals, priorities and plans for, and cost of, growth and expansion;
s slrategic initiatives;

s availability of water supply;

»  water usage by customers; and

»  ability to pay dividends on common stock and the rate of those dividends.

The forward-looking statements in this Annual Repont reflect what the Company currently anticipates will happen. What
actually happens could differ materially from what it currently anticipates will happen. The Company does not intend to
make any public announcement when forward-looking statements in this Annual Report are no longer accurate, whether
as a result of new information, what actually happens in the future or for any other reason. Important matters that may
affect what will actually happen include, but are not limited to:

s changes in weather, including drought conditions;

e levels of rate relief granted;

e the level of commercial and industrial business activity within the Company’s service territory;
o construction of new housing within the Company's service territory and increases in population;
¢ changes in government policies or regulations;

e the ability to obtain permits for expansion projects;




» material changes in demand from customers, including the impact of conservation efforts which may impact

the demand of customers for water;

® changes in economic and business conditions, including interest rates, which are less favorable than expected;

and

+ other matters set forth in Item 1A, “Risk Factors”.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
All dollar amounts are stated in thousands of dollars.

The Company does not use off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements or obligations that may have a material current
or future effect on financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, capital resources or significant
components of revenues or expenses. The Company does not use securitization of receivables or unconsolidated entities.
The Company does not engage in trading or risk management activities, with the exception of the interest rate swap
agreement discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, does not use derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes, has no lease obligations, and does not have material transactions involving related parties.

The Company's operations are exposed to market risks primarily as a result of changes in interest rates. This exposure to
these market risks relates to the Company's debt obligations under its lines of credit. As of February, 2008 the Company
has lines of credit with maximum availability of $28,000 with two banks, under which there were borrowings outstanding
of $11,210 as of December 31, 2007. Loans granted under these lines bear interest based upon LIBOR plus 0.70 10 0.75
percent. Both lines of credit are unsecured. One line, amounting to $11,000 is payable upon demand, whereas the other
is a committed line with a revolving 2-year maturity. Other than lines of credit, the Company has long-term fixed rate
debt obligations as discussed in Note 4 to the Financial Statements included in the 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders
included as Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K and the variable rate PEDFA loan agreement described below.

In December 2004, the Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority, or the PEDFA, issued $12,000
apgregate principal amount of PEDFA Exempt Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series B. The PEDFA then loaned the
proceeds to the Company pursuant to a variable interest rate loan agreement with 2 maturity date of October 1,2029. In
connection with the loan agreement, the Company entered into an interest rate swap transaction whereby the Company
exchanged its floating rate obligation for a fixed rate obligation. The purpose of the interest rate swap is to manage the
Company’s exposure to fluctuations in the interest rate. See Note 4 to the finaacial statements of our 2007 Annual
Report to Shareholders included as Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K.

The table below provides information about the Company’s derivative financial instrument and other financial
instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates, including interest rate swaps and debt obligations. For debt
obligations, the table presents principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates.
For interest rate swaps, the table presents notional amounts and weighted average interest rates by expected maturity
dates. Notional amounts are used 1o calculate the contractual payments to be exchanged under the contract. Weighted
average variable rates are based on implied forward rates in the yield curve at the reporting date.

{In thousands of dollars) Expected Maturity Date
: Fair
Liabilities 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012  Thereafter  Total Value
Long-term debt $12,040 310951  $4,341 341 542 343,090  $70,505  $80,000
Weighted average

. 3.70% 3.89% 3.72% 1.00% 1.00% 7.27% 6.03%
interest rate




(In thousands of dollars) Expected Maturity Date

Interest Rate Derivatives 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter  Total \f:'ge
Interest Rate Swap — -
Notional Value $12,000 $473
Vartable to Fixed

Average pay rate 3.15% 3.16% 3.16% 3.16% 3.19% 3.16% 3.16%

Average receive rate 2.52% 1.94% 2.33% 2.58% 2.75% 3.12% 2.96%

The liabilities portion of the table includes the $12,000 variable rate loan, as the underlying bonds were tendered in
January 2008. Interest on the $12,000 variable rate loan is included at an assumed interest rate of 3.71% which
represents the average rate paid to bondholders in 2007. Since the bonds were tendered in January and may not be able
to be remarketed, the Company may be required to refund the bonds and refinance them. If the variable rate debt were
refinanced, the interest rate could be in the 4.00% - 7.00% range, which is a substantial increase. The Company would
ask the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission for the additional interest to be included in rates charged to customers.

The Hiabilities table also includes $8,210 in 2009 of outstanding borrowings under the Company’s committed line of
credit. The interest rate is variable but is included in the table at its most current rate of 4.0 percent.

The interest rate derivative portion of the table assumes the interest rate swap agreement continues. 1f the Company
refunds and refinances the variable rate debt, the swap may continue or it may be terminated. In the event the interest
rate swap terminates, either we or PNC Bank, the swap counterparty, may be required to make a termination payment to
the other based on market conditions at such time. If the Company had terminated the rate swap as of February 27, 2008,
the Company’s termipation payment would have amounted to $405.

Ttem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The following financial statements set forth in the printed 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders are incorporated herein by
reference:

Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting Page 20
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting Page 21
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Page 22
Balance Sheets as of December 3 1, 2007 and 2006 Page 23
Statements of Income for Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 Page 24
Statements of Common Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

for Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 Page 25
Statements of Cash Flows for Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 Page 26
Notes to Financial Statements Page 27

Except for the above financial data and the information specified under Items |1, 5, 6, 7, and 7A of this report, the
2007Annual Report to Shareholders is not deemed to be filed as part of this repost.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Flinancial Disclosure.
None.
item 9A.  Controls and Procedures.
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company's management, with the participation of the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report. Based upon this evaluation, the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer along
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with the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report are functioning effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to
be disclosed by the Company in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is (i) recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia)
Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure. A controls system cannot provide absolute
assurance, however, that the objectives of the controls system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.

The Company’s management’s report on internal control over financial reporting is set forth in Item § of this annual
report on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference herein.

() Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 have been audited by Beard Miller
Company LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm who also aundited the Company’s financial statements.
Beard Miller’s attestation report on the Company’s internal contro! over financial reporting is set forth in Item 8 of this
annual report on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference herein.

(c) Change in Internal Conirol over Financial Reporting
No change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting occurred during the Company's most recent fiscal
guarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III

Ttem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Directors and Executive Officers

The information set forth under the caption "Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof” of the Proxy Statement
issued pursvant to Regulation 14A for the Company's 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 5, 2008 is
incorporated herein by reference.

Other Directorships

The information set forth under the caption “General Information about Other Boards of Directors™ of the Proxy
Statement issued pursuant to Regulation 14A for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 5,
2008 is incorporated herein by reference.

Section 16{z) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The information set forth under the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of the Proxy
Statement issued pursuant io Regulation 14A for the Company's 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 5,
2008 is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

The Company’s Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all Directors, officers and employees.
There were no watvers of the code made for any Director, officer or employee during 2007. A copy of the Code of
Conduct was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
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10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. The Code of Conduct is also available, free of charge, on the Company’s
website at www. yorkwater.com. The Company intends to disclose amendments to, or Director, officer and employee
waivers from, the Code of Conduct, if any, on its website, or by Form 8-K to the extent required.

Audit Committes

The information set forth under the caption “Committees and Functions” of the Proxy Statement issued pursuant to
Regulation 14A for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 5, 2008 is incorporated herein
by reference.

The Board of Directors has determined that John L. Finlayson, Chairman of the Audit Committee, is an Audit Committee
financial expert within the meaning of the applicable SEC rules. Mr. Finlayson i5 a Certified Public Accountant, and has
an understanding of generally accepted accounting principles and financial statements, as well as the ability to assess the
general application of such principles in connection with the accounting for estimates, accruals and reserves. Mr.
Finlayson is experienced in the preparation and auditing of financial statements of public companies, and has an
understanding of accounting estimates, internal control over financial reporting and audit committee functions. He is
independent of management.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information set forth under the caption "Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers” of the Proxy Staternent
issued pursuant to Regulation 14A for the Company's 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 5, 2008 is
incorporated berein by reference.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The information set forth under the caption “Committees and Functions” of the Proxy Statement issued pursuant to
Regulation 14A for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 5, 2008 is incorporated herein
by reference.

Compensation Committee Report

The information set forth under the caption “Compensation Committee Report” of the Proxy Statement issued pursuant to
Regulation 14A for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 3, 2008 is incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The Company has no securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans with the exception of an
employee stock purchase plan. The employee stock purchase pilan allows employees to purchase stock at a 5% discount
up to a maximum of 10% of their gross compensation. Under this plan, approximately 59,000 authorized shares remain
unissued as of December 31, 2007.

The information set forth under the caption "Voting Securities and Principa) Holders Thereof” of the Proxy Statement
issued pursuant to Regulation 14A for the Company's 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 5, 2008 is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Michael W. Gang, an independent director of the Company, is a partner in the law firm of Post & Schell PC. The
Company retained this firm for various matters during 2007 and expects to do so again during 2008. The Company paid
approximately $76,000 to this law firm in 2007. The Company plans to consult with Jeffrey S. Osman, Retired President
and Chief Executive Officer and Director, regarding regulatory matters in 2008. The value of these services is expected
to be less than $50,000.

The information set forth under the captions “Election of Directors™ and “Disclosure of Related Party Transactions™ of
- 1 2 -




the Proxy Statement issued pursuant 1o Regulation 14A for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be
held May 5, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountsnt Fees and Services.
The information set forth under the caption, "Shareholder Approval of Appointment of Independent Public Accountants”
of the Proxy Statement issued pursuant to Regulation 14A for the Company's 2008 Annmal Meeting of Sharcholders to be
held May 5, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference.
PART IV

Hem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a)(1) Certain documents filed as a part of the Form 10-K,
The financial statements set forth under Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

{a)(2) Financial Statement schedules.

Schedule Schedule Page
Number Descripiion Number
I Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 15

for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

The report of the Company's independent registered public accounting firm with respect to the financial statement
schedule appears on page 14.

All other financial statements and schedules not listed have been omitted since the required information is included in the
financial statements or the notes thereto, or is not applicable or required.

(a)(3) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

The exhibits are set forth in the Index to Exhibits shown on pages 17 through 20.




Report of Independent Registered Pubiic Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
The York Water Company

The audits referred to in our report dated March 10, 2008 relating to the financial statcments of The
York Water Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2007 incorporated in Item 8 of this Form 10-K by reference to the annual report to
stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2007 included the audit of the financial statement schedule
listed in Item 15(a)(2). This financial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement schedule based upon our audits.

In our opinion, the financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

Beardd Mo %'LLP

Beard Miller Company LLP
Y ork, Pennsylvania
March 10, 2008
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THE YORK WATER COMPANY

SCHEDULE H VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Description

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2007
Reserve for
uncollectible accounts

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2006
Reserve for
uncollectible accounts

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2005
Reserve for
uncollectible accounts

Balance at
Beginning
Of Year

$173,000

$130,000

Additions
Charged to
Cost and Balance At
Expenses Recoveries Deductions End Of Year
$153,855 $20,831 134,686 $193,000
$209914 $15,253 $187,167 $173,000
$128,032 $14,126 $137,158 $135,000
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SIGNATURES

Pursnant 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE YORK WATER COMPANY
{Registrant)

Dated: March 10, 2008 By:

Jeffrey R Hines
President and CEQ

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on beh]f of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

e A

By:
Jefliey R THines Kathleen M. Miller
{Principal Executive Officer {Principal Accounting Officer and Chief Financial
and Director) Officer)
Dated: March 10, 2008 Dated: March 10, 2008

Date:

Directors:

By: March 10, 2003
iHam T. Moiris

By%i\h\m\g w\%:\ﬁﬁ March 10, 2008
Irvin 8. Naylor

B)','/-Ji- DD C C;)_,_.‘.-.—u March 10, 2008

\_) 1Ilefi’r@s S. Osman

Qﬁ’%*{ m{ﬂ/m‘l) March 10, 2008

ﬂ John L. Fm]ayson

By: /d\:_ﬂ,(y‘&k\k"‘“ March {0, 2008

jporge ijlay Kain, 1l

. /b\M

Michael W. Gang

By: ;: March 10, 2008
eorg,r. W. Hodges

By: fran ( ?_) M March 10, 2008

1as C. Norris

By: gr\mq

Ernest J. Waters

March 10, 2008

March 10, 2008




INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Page Number of
Exhibit Exhibit Incorporation
Number Description By Reference
3 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation  Incorporated herein by reference. Filed

previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K dated
August 30, 2006.

EN | By-Laws Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Cornmission as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K dated
January 24, 2007.

4.1 Optional Dividend Reinvestment Plan Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as the Prospectus included in
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-3 dated June 12,
1997 (File No. 33-81246).

4.2 Shareholder Rights Agreement Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 1 to Form 8-A dated
January 26, 1999,

10.1  Loan Agreement between The York Water Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
Company and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure previously with the Securities and Exchange
Investment Authority for $800,000 at 1.00% Commission as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's
dated August 24, 1999 2000 Form 10-K.

16.2  Note Agreement Relative to the $6,000,000 Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
10.17% Senior Notes, Series A and $5,000,000 previously with the Securities and Exchange
9.60% Senior Notes, Series B dated January 2, Commission as Exhibit 4.5 to the Company's
1989 1989 Form 10-K.

10.3  Note Agreement Relative to the $6,500,000 Incorporated herzin by reference. Filed
10.05% Senior Notes, Series C dated August 15,  previously with the Securities and Exchange
1950 Commission as Exhibit 4.6 to the Company's

1990 Form 10-K.

104  Note Agreement Relative to the $7,500,000 Incorporated herzin by reference. Filed
8.43% Senior Notes, Series D dated December previously with the Securities and Exchange
15,1992 Commission as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company's

1992 Form 10-K.
10.5  Fourth Supplemental Acquisition, Financing and  Incorporated herein by reference. Filed

Sale Agreement Relative to the $2,700,000 4.75%
Water Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds dated
February 1, 1994

previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 4.8 to the Company's
Quarterly Report Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1994.




Exhibit
Number

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

i0.10

10.11

10.12

13.13

Exhibit
Description

Fifth Supplemental Acquisition, Financing and
Sale Agreement Relative to the $4,300,000 5%
Water Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds dated
October 1, 1995

Loan Agreement between The York Water
Company and Pennsylvania Economic
Development Financing Authority, dated as of
April 1, 2004 Relative to the $2,350,000 4.05%
and $4,950,000 5% Exempt Facility Revenue
Bonds

Loan Agreement between The York Water
Company and Pennsylvania Economic
Development Firancing Authority, dated as of
December 1, 2004 Relative to the $12,000,000
3.16% (Variable rate with swap) Exempt Facility
Revenue Bonds

Trust Indenture dated December 1, 2004 between
the Pennsylvania Economic Development
Financing Authority and Manufacturers and
Traders Trust Company, as trustee.

Articles of Agreement Between The York Water
Company and Springettsbury Township Relative
to Extension of Water Mains dated April 17, 1985

Articles of Agreement Between The York Water
Company and Windsor Township Relative to
Extension of Water Mains dated February 9, 1989

Articles of Agreement Between The York Water
Company and Windsor Township, Yorkana
Borough, Modern Trash Remova! of York, Inc.
and Lower Windsor Township Relative to
Extension of Water Mains dated July 18, 1989

Articles of Agreement Between The York Water
Company and North Codorus Township Relative
to Extension of Water Mains dated September 20,
1989

Page Number of
Incorporation

By Reference

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed previously
with the Securities and Exchange Comimission as
Exhibit 4.9 to the Company's Quarterly Report
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1995.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previousty with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s June
30, 2004 Form 10-Q.

Incorporated herzin by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
December 9, 2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herzin by reference. Filed
previonsly with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 13.2 to the Company’s
December 9, 2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Fxhibit 10.1 to the Company's
1989 Form 10-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's
1989 Form 10-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's
1989 Form 10-K.

Incorporated hercin by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's
1990 Form 10-K.




Exhibit
Number

10.14

10.15

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21%*

10.22*

Exhibit
Description

Articles of Agreement Between The York Water
Company and York Township Relative to
Extension of Water Mains dated December 29,
1989

Amendment Number | to Articles of Agreement
Between The York Water Company and
Conewago Township Relative to Extension of
Water Mains dated March 14, 2003

Cash Incentive Plan

Agreement, made as of January 26, 1999, between

The York Water Company and Bruce C.
Mclntosh.

Agreement, made as of January 26, 1999, between

The York Water Company and Jeffrey R. Hines,
PE.

Agreement, made as of January 26, 1999, between

The York Water Company and Duane R. Close.

Agreement, made as of December 18, 2003,

between The York Water Company and Jeffrey S.

Osman.

Agreement, made as of December 15, 2003,
between The York Water Company and Kathleen
M. Miller,

Agreement, made as of December 15, 2003,
between The York Water Company and Vernon
L. Bracey.

Page Number of
Incorporation

By Reference

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's
1990 Form 10-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s
2004 Form 10-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Comimission as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's
January 24, 2005 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herzin by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
July 15, 2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
July 15,2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
July 15, 2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
July 15,2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s
July 15, 2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Comunission as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s
July 15, 2004 Form 8-K.




Exhibit
Number

10.23%*

10.24%*

10.25

16.26

14

23

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Exhibit
Description

Fornm of Supplemental Retirement Plan

Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement

Loan Agreement between The York Water
Company and York County Industrial
Development Authority, dated as of October 1,
2006 Relative to the $10,500,000 4.75% Exempt
Facility Revenue Bonds

Trust Indenture dated October 1, 2006 between
the York County Industrial Development
Authority and Manufacturers and Traders Trust
Company, as trustee.

2007 Annual Report to Shareholders

Company Code of Conduct

Consent of Beard Miller Company LLP,
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification pursuant to
Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)

Certification pursuant to
Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Page Number of
Incorporation

By Reference

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Comunission as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s
July 15, 2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s
July 15, 2004 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange

Commission as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
November 2, 2006 Form 8-K.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
November 2, 2006 Form 8-K.

Filed herewith.

Incorporated herein by reference. Filed
previously with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as Exhibit 14 to the Company's 2002
Form 10-K.

Filed herewith.
Filed herewith.
Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

*Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.




EXHIBIT 13

THE YORK WATER COMPANY

2007 ANNUAL REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

The York Water Company's 2007 Annual Report to Sharehoiders is attached hereto.




Exhibit 23
Consent of Beard Miller Company LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The York Water Company
York, Pennsylvania

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3
{Nos. 333-59072 and 033-81246) and Form S-8 (No. 333-29021) of The York Water Company of our
reports dated March 10, 2008, relating to the financial statements, and the effectiveness of The York
Water Company’s internal control over financial reporting, which appear in the Annual Report to
Stockholders, which is incorporated by reference in this Annuoal Report on Form 10-K. We also consent to
the incorporation by reference of our report dated March 10, 2008 relating to the financial statement
schedule, which appears in this Form 10-K.

BG’M M'M- anam? LLP

Beard Millexr Company LLP
York, Pennsylvania
March 10, 2008




EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Jeffrey R. Hines, certify that:

1.

2.

S.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of The York Weter Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a matertal
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report,

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in alt material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
penods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined m Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(1)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
m which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over finemcial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes m accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclustons about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that oceurred
during the registramt’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal controt
over financial reporting, 1o the registrant's auditors and the andit committer: of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other emplovees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2008

iJeﬂ”Iey R. Hineé
President and CEQ




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

1, Kathleen M. Miller, certify that:

1.

2.

5.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of The York Water Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this veport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of]
and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchanpe Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)} and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal contrel over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financia] reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internat contrel over financial repoerting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likelv to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
surmmarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

. _: . }/)/ 4y
Date: March 10, 2008 T AL /UK&,

Kathleen M. Miller
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
_ AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of The York Water Company on Form 10-K for the period ending
December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report™), I, Jeffrey R.
Hines, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant lo
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

THE YORK WATER COMPANY
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effrey R. Hihes™
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 10, 2008




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.5.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2062

In connection with the Annual Report of The York Water Company on Form 10-K for the pertod ending December
31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof {the "Report"), I, Kathleen M. Miller,
Chuef Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursnant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant (o Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1 The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934:; and

(2) The information contamed in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

THE YORK WATER COMPANY

Yol il

Kathleen M. Miller
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 10, 2008
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Preparing to Serve the changing needs of customers in our expanding distribution
territory and supply system is a hallmark of The York Water Company.



® The York Water Company

130 EAST MARKET STREET, YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 17405

*That good York water”
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